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SECTION 1 GRANT APPLICATION 

GRANT APPLICATION FORM 

1.) Applicant:  (Legal name of organization as incorporated in the State of Florida) 
   Stetson University, Inc. 
Address: (mailing)       421 North Woodland Blvd., Unit 8262 
City: DeLand     State: FL   Zip Code: 32723 
Address: (Applicant’s physical address)   same as above 
City:      State:    Zip Code: 

2.) Federal ID #:  59-0624416 

Florida Not-For-Profit Corporation Charter # (IF applicable)    N27521 

Florida Dept. of Agriculture & Consumer Services Registration # (IF applicable) 85-8012620824C-4 

3.) Resident County Council District of Project:  Pat Patterson / District 1 
4.) Contact Person: 

Name:      Clay Henderson 
Title:     Executive Director, Institute for Water & Environmental Resilience 
Telephone #: 386 822 7961    E-Mail:  whenders@stetson.edu 

5.) Project Title        Public Access Enhancements for  Stetson Aquatic Center on Lake Beresford 
6.) Project Location Address:        2630 - 2636 Alhambra Avenue 

City: DeLand     State: FL  Zip Code:       32720    
7.) Type of Project: (Check one – See ECHO project categories) 

⎕ Renovation  ⎕ Restoration  ⊠ New Construction ⎕ Acquisition 
8.) ECHO Category: (Check all that apply – See ECHO categories) 
⊠ Environmental ⎕ Cultural  ⎕ Historical  ⊠ Outdoor Recreation 

9.)  The project site or facility is: (Check one) 
⊠ Owned by Applicant ⎕ Leased by the Applicant – length of lease   
⎕ Applicant has Land/Project Management Agreement – length of Agreement  
Lease or Land/Project Management Agreement dates:       to 
Note: Leases/Agreements must be binding and non-cancelable. 

10.)  Is the project site/facility mortgaged or will it be?  ⊠  Yes  ⎕ No 
Current Mortgage: $ 362,710   Mortgage at Closing:  $500,000 
Mortgage length:     10 years  Term ending date: 10/3/2022 
Name and Address of Lien Holder:    Lonnie R. Clifton 213 Kensington Road, DeLand, FL 32724 
 

11.)  Is the facility in a Community Redevelopment District (CRA)?  ⎕ Yes  ⊠ No 
12.) Type of Organization: (must be “A” or “B” to be eligible) 

A.) ⎕ Municipal government or a budgeted organization of Volusia County government. 
B.) ⊠ Not-For-Profit Corporation classified as a 501(c)(3) 

13.) Project Funding (Grant Amount Request and Match): 
1.) Standard Grant Request (Up to $400,000.00): 

a. Volusia ECHO Program Request  $                  400,000        
b. Confirmed Match Funds   $                  400,000    
c. Total Project Cost    $                  800,000 
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14.) Mandatory Workshop was attended by:   Sidney Johnston      Date:  October 16, 2015 
 
NOTE: If applying for an Exceptional Grant the form on page 6 must be complete. 
 

15.) List any prior grants received from ECHO: (include year, project name and amount) 
2008 - Homer & Dolly Hand Art Center $600,000 
2007 - Marshall & Vera Lea Rinker Environmental Learning Center $325,000 
 

1.1 MISSION: 
1.) Provide the Mission Statement for your organization. 

 
Our mission at Stetson University is to provide an excellent education in a creative community where 
learning and values meet, and to foster in students the qualities of mind and heart that will prepare 
them to reach their full potential as informed citizens of local communities and the world. 
 
At Stetson, the art of teaching is practiced through programs solidly grounded in a tradition of liberal 
learning that stimulates critical thinking, imaginative inquiry, creative expression, and lively intellectual 
debate. The art of learning is enhanced through small interactive classes, close student-faculty alliances, 
and collaborative approaches that provide the foundation for rewarding careers and advanced study in 
selective graduate and professional programs. We embrace diverse methodologies to foster effective 
communication, information and technological literacy, and aesthetic appreciation. We encourage the 
development of informed convictions, independent judgment, and lifelong commitments to learning 
that are characteristic features of the enlightened citizen. In bringing together learning and values, the 
University encourages all of its members to demonstrate personal integrity; to develop an appreciation 
for the spiritual dimension of life; to embrace leadership in an increasingly complex, interdependent, 
and technological world; and to commit to active forms of social responsibility. 
  

1.3 PROJECT TEAM: 
1.) 1.) List the names and addresses of the architect, engineer, design consultants and/or general contractor 

selected.  Include the name(s) of the person(s) who have signed form 1.6. 
 
Architect – Preston T. Phillips   Post Office Box 3037 Bridgehampton, New York 11932 
Engineer – Tad Kasbeer, Dewberry 110 West Indiana Avenue, Suite 202 DeLand, FL 32720 
President – Wendy B. Libby, Ph.D. (Form 1.6 signatory) 
Executive Vice President & CFO – F. Robert Huth (Form 1.6 signatory) 
 

2.) 2.) List the person(s) who created the section 3.1 budget and their experience with this type of project.   
 
The Budget was created by Robert Huth and Al Allen.  Mr. Huth is Chief Financial Officer of Stetson 
University and is responsible to the Board of Trustees for the overall university budget, financial 
controls, financial statements, and audits.  He is very familiar with all aspects of the budget of the 
university and has prepared and approved budgets for a number of construction projects and grants in 
aid.  Mr. Allen is Associate Vice President for Facilities Management and is responsible for all 
construction and maintenance of university facilities.  He is also primarily responsible for the university’s 
sustainability plan.  He is project manager for all facilities construction at the university.   
   
3.) If a complete list is not available, explain why and when the project team will be selected: 

Stetson Aquatic Center ECHO Grant 3



2015/2016 ECHO Grants-in-Aid Standard & Exceptional Grant Application 
 

 

Stetson University has executed a contract with Preston Phillips Architects of Bridgehampton, NY to provide 
the architecture, design, and engineering services for all site work, structures, docks and landscape at the 
Stetson Aquatic Center.  In addition to providing the construction documents, change orders, and RFIs, the 
architect will assist Stetson in bidding and procurement information, review the GC’s amounts due, issue 
certificates, submittal schedule.  Dewberry is the engineering firm of record for the project and the principal 
engineer is Tad Kasbeer PE.  The contract manager for Stetson University is Al Allen, Associate Vice President 
for Facilities Management.  The project schedule anticipates engagement of a landscape architect in March 
2016.  The general contractor will not be selected until after final site plan approval by the County Council 
later this year.  The project schedule calls for construction to begin November 2016 and be substantially 
complete within one year  
 
1.4 MANAGEMENT PROSPECTUS:  

1.) Include a list of the names of staff dedicated to this project, their responsibilities and the percentage of 
time each will be spending on the project per week.    
 
Albert T. Allen, Associate Vice President 
Facilities Management 
Stetson University 
421 N. Woodland Blvd., Unit 8420, DeLand, FL  
386-822-8808 / aallen@stetson.edu 
 
Al Allen is responsible for all facilities management at Stetson University.  He is responsible for contract 
administration with Preston T. Phillips Architect for construction of the Stetson Aquatic Center.  He is 
responsible for obtaining permits and final site plan approval from the county.  Mr. Allen will spend 
10% of his time each week on this project.   
  
Clay Henderson, Executive Director 
Institute for Water and Environmental Resilience 
Sage Science Center 212A 
421 N. Woodland Blvd., Unit 8262, DeLand, FL  
386-822-7961 / clay.henderson@stetson.edu 
 
Clay Henderson is primarily responsible for meeting the requirements of the ECHO grant proposal and 
ensuring that obligations of the grant will be fulfilled.  He will also represent the university before the 
ECHO Board and County Council on all matters pertaining to the grant as well as final site plan 
approval.  Mr. Henderson will spend 20% of his time each week on this project.   

 
1.5 RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS – NOTICE OF FUTURE REQUIREMENT IF GRANT IS AWARDED 
 

1.) Do you agree to comply with the requirement to file Restrictive Covenants with the Volusia County 
Clerk of the Court if ECHO Grant is awarded? (A sample of the Restrictive Covenants language is found 
on page ---- in the ECHO Application Guide) 
 

⊠ YES   ⎕NO 
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 If the project of the application is mortgaged or leased property, other than those applying for trails in 
the County Master Plan or projects on State or Federal land not owned by the applicant, a letter from the 
Mortgagee or Lessor, stating that they agree to sign the Restrictive Covenants, must be supplied with the 
application. 
 
Letter of consent from mortgage holder Lonnie Clifton is included in Section 5. 

 
 Applicants with projects on State owned land are automatically exempt from this requirement, but are 
held to the same liquidated damages cited within the Restrictive Covenants through language found in the 
final ECHO Agreement for which the grantee is held responsible. 
 
UNRESTRICTED OWNERSHIP:  Proof of unrestricted ownership of the property by Stetson University is 
demonstrated by Warranty Deed which is included in Section 5: Supporting Documents. 
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 1.7 EXCEPTIONAL GRANT REQUESTS ONLY:    
Maximum grant request is $1,800,000.00 with distribution of up to $600,000.00 for 3 consecutive years. The 
required match is 4:1. The time frame to complete construction is two years following the date of the last year 
funds are provided. 
 
ANNUAL AMOUNT REQUESTED/MATCHED 
   
     ECHO Request  4:1 Match 
 
  Grant Year #1  $   $ 
  Grant Year #2  $   $ 
  Grant Year #3  $   $ 
 
TOTAL EXCEPTIONAL PROJECT: $   $ 
 
 
 
 
The Exceptional Project Applicant:  ⎕ Agrees ⎕ Does not agree - to accept a grant award of 
$400,000.00 for one year if an Exceptional Project Grant amount is not approved by the ECHO Grant Review 
Panel or the Volusia County Council. 
 
 

Signature: 
(Official with applicant signature authority) 

 
Typed Name: 
 
Title: 
 
Phone Number: 
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SECTION 2: PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
2.1 PROJECT ASSESSMENT 
 

1.) Provide a narrative explaining how your project will meet the goals set by Resolution 2000-156 “to 
enhance the quality of life for its residents by providing environmental, cultural, historical and outdoor 
recreational opportunities.” (State your goals in bold type; Describe how this project will impact the 
community and enhance the quality of life for its citizens; Use real numerical data and insert 
documents/contract agreements which back up your narrative) 
 
GOAL: THE GOAL FOR THE PUBLIC ACCESS ENHANCEMENTS AT STETSON 

AQUATIC CENTER ON LAKE BERESFORD ECHO PROJECT IS TO PROVIDE THE 

GENERAL PUBLIC ACCESS TO DISTINCTIVE ATHLETIC EVENTS, ENVIRONMENTAL 

EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES, AND NON-MOTORIZED BOAT ACCESS TO LAKE 

BERESFORD AT A UNIQUE SETTING WITHIN THE GREATER ST. JOHNS RIVER 

WATERSHED. 

Background.  The Stetson Aquatic Center will be a distinctive outdoor recreation and environmental 
education venue in West Volusia, located on approximately ten acres on the western shore of Lake 
Beresford.  The County Council has approved Resolution 2014-60 which authorizes a Development 
Agreement (BPUD) for the site and a generous donor has pledged $6 million to design the site and 
construct an approximately 10,000 square foot building for the Institute for Water and Environmental 
Resilience and the Stetson Rowing Team, and includes $1.5 million of endowment to care for operating 
costs.  The site will also include a native botanical garden to be interpreted as “Bartram Gardens” with 
signage depicting the descriptions   of pioneer naturalist William Bartram who visited the Hontoon 
Peninsula and crossed Lake Beresford in 1765 and 1774.  The canoe/kayak launching site will provide 
access to the “Bartram Canoe Trail” to connect to key sites in West Volusia.  The site will also host 
rowing teams from around the country for training purposes and also host regional rowing regattas.  It 
is anticipated that construction will begin in the last quarter of 2016 and be substantially complete by 

Spring 2018. 
 
  County Council Resolution 2014-60 authorizes use of 

the site for educational purposes including 
community education, environmental education, 
leadership training, nature study and photography as 
well as indoor and outdoor student classrooms and 
scientific research.  Approved outdoor recreation 
uses include human powered boat launching 
facilities, sporting events, and regattas.  Approved 
civic uses include community events and education. 

 
The County Council also approved Resolution 2014-
59 which vacates a portion of the antiquated 1926 

subdivision underlying the property.  One of the conditions of the resolution is “providing public access 
to Lake Beresford including improvements to facilitate public access and recreational enjoyment of 
Lake Beresford by non-motorized vessels…”  Stetson University has recorded an access easement 
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which provides for public ingress and egress and launch of non-motorized vessels.  Both Resolutions 
2014-59 and 2014-60 and the Access Easement are included in the Appendix. 
 
Purpose of the ECHO Grant.  The purpose of the ECHO grant is to enhance public access at the Stetson 
Aquatic Center for environmental educational and outdoor recreational purposes and to establish a 
new canoe/kayak launch to Lake Beresford and the St. Johns River.  
 
The Public Access Enhancements at the Stetson Aquatic Center ECHO Project meet the goals of 
Resolution 2000-156 in the following respects: 
  

 The Public Access Enhancements at the 
Stetson Aquatic Center will enhance the 
quality of life for Volusia County residents by 
providing unique environmental education 
opportunities and outdoor recreation 
opportunities to the public. 

 The Stetson Aquatic Center will promote 
heritage tourism opportunities. 

 The Stetson Aquatic Center will foster the 
public memory and community identity by 
promoting and providing access to 
destinations and associated with past events, 
people, and places.     

       
The Stetson Aquatic Center will be a distinctive site and destination within Volusia County.  The public 
access enhancements will ensure public access to Lake Beresford and scheduled public events at the 
site.  Already, the site has become an important training venue for rowing teams across North America.  
In addition, the site is already approved for regional regattas.  In 2013, 2014, and 2015 regattas were 
held at the site that drew over 2000 people to each event.  The attendees and participants travel to the 
site from a wide ranging geographic area and the attendees and participants avail themselves of other 
West Volusia amenities such as restaurants and lodging.  In addition, Volusia County residents now 
have the opportunity to view high quality athletic events in a beautiful outdoor venue. 
 
The Stetson Aquatic Center will also host important 
environmental educational events that will be open 
to the general public.  The Institute for Water and 
Environmental Resilience (also housed on site) will 
host conferences, community meetings, symposia 
on a range of environmental issues and will utilize 
the outdoor pavilion and grounds in programing. 
 
The site will also serve an environmental and 
heritage role by interpreting West Volusia 
connections to 18th Century naturalist William 
Bartram.  Stetson University had originally planned 
“Bartram Gardens” on its DeLand campus, but the addition of the Lake Beresford site provides the 
opportunity to interpret the Bartram exploration on a site on close proximity to places he described 
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and explored.  A part of the public access enhancements will be interpretive signage to provide 
canoe/kayak access to places Bartram visited.  In addition, the boardwalk through the native 
vegetation botanical gardens will provide opportunities for interpretive signage to use Bartram’s words 
and drawings to describe native flora he observed.  These aspects of the project will place Volusia on 
the Bartram Trail and solidify West Volusia as an important aspect of the Bartram exploration in the 
18th century.  Just to our north, Putnam County has put in place a Bartram Trail along the St. Johns 
River and this ECHO proposal will provide the opportunity for continuation of the Trail through West 
Volusia.  Bartram’s descriptions of alligators and his visit to Beresford Plantation and Blue Spring are 
some of the unforgettable aspects of the Bartram experience and they occurred in West Volusia.  It will 
also be an enhancement to the River of Lakes Heritage Corridor. 
 

The public access enhancements for the 
Stetson Aquatic Center will improve the 
quality of life for Volusia County residents by 
providing a distinctive setting for enjoyment 
of the natural resources of West Volusia.  It 
will provide the opportunity for Volusians and 
visitors to immerse themselves in a better 
understanding of William Bartram’s 
exploration of the St. Johns River and what 
that has meant to nature study over the last 
200 years.  Lastly, the improvements will add 
to the quality of outdoor environmental 
education to give citizens and policy makers 
the understanding to conserve and restore the 
valuable natural resources of Volusia County. 

 
In 2011, Volusia County engaged the Stetson Institute for Social Research to perform a county-wide 
study on unmet needs of the ECHO program.  This study was relied upon by the County Council in its 
subsequent adjustments to this important county-wide program.  The findings reported suggest 
several observations and conclusions.  In general, adult resident users highly value access to Volusia 
County’s river and lakes.  Economic leaders in Volusia County view rivers and lakes as important for 
attracting and maintaining a skilled workforce.  West Volusia economic leaders are less satisfied with 
access to rivers and lakes than East Volusia economic leaders, which may be attributed in part to East 
Volusia’s beaches.  In support of the survey findings, Stetson’s Public Access Lake Beresford Project has 
the potential to make the connection clearer between Volusia ECHO and quality of life issues and 
address a need to provide better access to rivers and lakes in West Volusia. 
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2.2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
1.) The purpose of the ECHO project is to enhance public access to Lake Beresford, St. Johns River, and 
Stetson Aquatic Center for outdoor recreation and environmental education.   Construction of the 
public access improvements will take place concurrently with construction of the Stetson Aquatic 
Center.  Construction is slated to begin in the last quarter of 2016 and be completed in Spring 2018. 
 

Description
Feb-June, 

2016
Fall 2016 April 2018

$2,000

$35,000

$80,000

$35,000

$23,000

$450,000

$175,000

* Flow chart includes Stetson's cash match amounts.

ECHO Temporary Sign

Restrooms / Sewer & Water

Fall 2016 - Spring 2018

Chart 2.2(1)(a)

Install Final ECHO Sign & Historic 

Signage

Boardwalks

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY / EXPENSE FLOW CHART*

Parking, Public Access Trails, 

Canoe/kayak Launch Area

Outdoor Pavilion

Fencing

ECHO Related Activities

 
 
Description of the Stetson Aquatic Center.  Stetson University owns approximately ten acres at the 
eastern end of Alhambra Street on the Hontoon Peninsula on the western shore of Lake Beresford, 
which is a part of the greater St. Johns River system.  In 2014, the Volusia County Council approved 
Resolution 2014-60 which approved BPUD zoning for the site together with a Development Agreement 
and Site Plan.  The resolution authorizes the use of the site for a range of environmental, educational, 
and outdoor recreation purposes.  These uses include public uses, public regattas, indoor and outdoor 
classrooms, field laboratories, and access by non-motorized vessels to Lake Beresford.  The Stetson 
Aquatic Center will include facilities for rowing team, Institute for Water and Environmental Resilience, 
and Public Access.   
 
The ECHO Project.  The purpose of the ECHO Project is to enhance public access to the Stetson Aquatic 
Center for scheduled public events as well as enhance public access for environmental education and 
outdoor recreation.  The site will be used as a public venue for regattas and will provide improved 
public access for canoe/kayak for Lake Beresford and the St. Johns River.  This is the first proposed 
ECHO Project to provide new improved public access to waterfront in West Volusia. 
 
Lake Beresford has emerged as a nationally recognized venue for training and competition for rowing 
teams.  Florida has long been a venue for winter training sites for mostly northern universities and Lake 
Beresford has emerged as a preeminent site due to its size, long and narrow configuration, and “flat 
water.” The World Rowing Championship will be held in Florida in 2017 and Lake Beresford will be 
used as a training site for teams from around the world.  Currently the Canadian Women’s National 
Olympic Team is training at the site.  The site will also be used for public rowing regattas featuring 
collegiate teams from around the country.  In each of the last three years, over 2000 participants from 
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around the country have converged on the site for these regional regattas.  This provides Volusia 
County residents the unique opportunity to view a major athletic event featuring athletes from across 
the country.  This will likely encourage our residents to engage in rowing and other paddling activities. 
 
The 10-acre tract has nearly 1,000 feet of 
waterfront on the western shore of Lake Beresford 
and is uniquely suited both as a sport and 
recreation center for non-motorized craft and for 
the study of water issues due to its connection and 
proximity to the St. Johns River and several 
freshwater springs in Central Florida. With its 
coveted flat water, safe access to 140 miles of 
rivers and lakes, warm climate and undeveloped 
shoreline, Lake Beresford’s location is considered 
one of the best training grounds in the world for the sport of rowing. 
 
The Stetson Aquatic Center will also be the location of the Institute for Water and Environmental 
Resilience.  The Institute’s mission is to support student and faculty research to inform public policy 
options about water and environmental issues facing Central Florida.  Central to the mission of the 
Institute is hosting community programs, conferences, and symposia and to engage the general public 
in wide ranging discussion on environmental and water related issues.  The public will be invited to 
participate in these programs designed to encourage water conservation, sustainability, and public 
policy options for conservation of our natural resources.   
 
The site will also include a native Florida landscaped botanical garden interpreted as “Bartram 
Gardens” through signage depicting the words and drawings of pioneer naturalist William Bartram.  
The explorer visited the Hontoon Peninsula in 1765 and 1774.  The earlier expedition was led by his 
father John Bartram for the purposes of identifying flora and fauna in the new British colony of Florida.  
John Bartram returned home to Philadelphia and established the first botanical garden in the United 
States.  William Bartram’s second expedition resulted in the epic Travels, a book which remains in print 
over two centuries later and has inspired generations of 
biologists and nature writers.  The Bartram Trail Conference 
identifies sites across the Southeastern United States 
associated with his expedition as a means of engaging the 
general public in the work of William Bartram.  In his 1774 
expedition, he took refuge from a storm on the west side of 
Lake Beresford and visited the Beresford Plantation on the 
east side of the lake as well as Blue Spring.   The 
canoe/kayak launch will include interpretive signage with 
maps and educational materials to tell the story of the 
Bartrams’ exploration of the St. Johns River and identify 
sites described in their journals and books.  The site will be 
the first trailhead for the Bartram Trail in Volusia County 
and will promote the development and identification of 
other places to access the canoe trail such as Blue Spring State Park or Lake Beresford Park.   Stetson 
will closely coordinate with the Bartram Trail Conference to accurately identity sites with appropriate 
signage and background materials to be historically correct. Dr. Tony Abbot, professor of Environmental 
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Sciences, is developing precise GPS coordinates for Bartram sites along the St. Johns River in West 
Volusia and will develop the maps to be used for the Bartram Canoe Trail.  
 
In 2015, Stetson University received a substantial gift of $6 million from a private donor to design the 
Stetson Aquatic Center, construct and endow the main building, and create the botanical gardens.  The 
ECHO Project is designed to fund additional components of the Center to enhance public access.  
Stetson is under a strict timeline regarding this donation which unfortunately does not coincide with 
the ECHO grant cycle.  Stetson is under contract with a nationally recognized New York based architect 
to design the site.  We expect to return to the County Council during the summer of 2016 for approval 
of the revised master site plan and for construction to commence in Fall 2016.  The contract calls for 
the construction to be substantially completed by Spring 2018.  If Stetson were to delay a year to seek 
an ECHO grant, it would be while the project is under construction and out of sequence with the ECHO 
program.  We ask for review of the project now, so that the Council can make the award subject to 
County Council approvals of the revised master site plan required later this year.  In 2015, the County 
Council gave site plan approval for this site for five years, but this schedule will open the site to the 
public a year earlier than planned. 
 
The purpose of the ECHO Project is to facilitate public access to the Stetson Aquatic Center, Lake 
Beresford and the St. Johns River.  The Stetson Aquatic Center will be a distinctive addition to West 
Volusia and the St. Johns River and worthy of support from the ECHO program.  The grant proposal is 
to facilitate enhancements to required public access and not for the primary benefit of student-faculty 
program.  The ECHO Project will fund the first waterfront access in West Volusia under the ECHO 
program.  Figure 1 (below) is the preliminary and schematic drawing for the Stetson Aquatic Center.   

  
A key is provided and lists in numerical order the main components within the drawing and the main 
components within the Conceptual Site Plan previously approved by the County Council.  The drawing 
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also shows the public access enhancements which are the subject of the ECHO grant proposal.  The 
Figure 1 drawing is available in a larger format in Section 5. 
 
The component parts of the ECHO project as shown on Figure 1 are as follows: 

 Parking.   An area south of Alhambra Street is shown as 10 public parking spaces including one 
ADA van accessible space  
be designated for public parking with appropriate signage.  

 Monument Sign.  At the entrance gate at the end of Alhambra Street will be the monument 
sign including the temporary 4’ x 8’ ECHO sign and the permanent 8 square feet ECHO sign.  The 
monument will also direct the public to the public access areas including the kayak/canoe 
launch area, access trail, public restroom, outdoor pavilion, and Bartram Trail/Boardwalks 
through the botanical gardens.    

 Outdoor Pavilion.  This “gazebo” type outdoor covered pavilion will be 900 square feet in area 
and be used for outdoor educational  
It is identified on the drawing as “17.” It will include interpretive signage for St. Johns River. 

 Public Restrooms.   Public access includes necessary toilet facilities in order to keep pollutants 
from the lake.  A toilet facility will be constructed in a convenient location separate from the 
main building for public use in the area identified as “16” on the drawing. 

 Hookup to central water and wastewater system.  Approval of the Stetson Aquatic Center by 
the County Council was contingent upon hook up to central water and sewer system which is 
available along Hontoon Road.  The cost of hook up to the water and wastewater system will be 
paid for by Stetson as part of its match. 

 Public Access Trail.  An improved and illuminated 20-foot-wide public access trail will extend 
from   the end of Alhambra Street along the dedicated public right of way for access to the 
canoe/kayak launch.  The trail will be improved with pervious and sustainable materials and is 
identified on the drawing as “15.”   

 Canoe/kayak Launch area.  An area at the end of the public access trail and identified as “29” 
on the drawing has been designated for canoe/kayak launch and which will be restricted by 
placement of a fence and low bar gate which allows for canoes and kayaks to be carried over 
but restricts jet skis or other trailerable vessels from use.   

 Boardwalks/Bartram Trail.  An area to the north of the Public Access Trail and identified on the 
drawing as “14” will be an elevated boardwalk along the shoreline and through the planned 
native vegetation botanical gardens.  The boardwalks will contain interpretive signage to use 
the words of William Bartram to identify native vegetation that he described on his exploration 
of the St. Johns River and to identify the Bartram Canoe Trail and destinations along the St. 
Johns River.   

 Fencing.  A fence will identify the property boundaries adjacent to Alhambra Street in order to 
prohibit unauthorized use of the public access for jet skis or boat trailers. 
 

 Public Access.  The ECHO project is designed to enhance public access to a portion of the site.  
The dedicated public parking and Public Access Trail will be generally open to the public except that it 
may be restricted during regattas which will include extensive public access as a regulated special 
event.  Access to the boardwalk, pavilion, and public restroom will be restricted to no more than one 
hour before sunrise to 11PM as set forth in the Development Agreement approved by the County 
Council.  Access to the remainder of the Stetson Aquatic Center will be for scheduled public access 
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which may include public events, conferences, environmental education workshops, community 
events, and regattas.  Figure 2 (below) depicts the public access areas proposed as the ECHO Project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

1.) Document how construction design and operational strategies use “green”/sustainable standards: 
(give specific examples for this project – a statement agreeing to follow local guidelines is not 
acceptable) 

Stetson University embraces sustainability and environmental responsibility as a core value.  Stetson 
University is a Charter Signatory member of the American College and University Presidents Climate 
Commitment (ACUPCC). In June 2007, then Stetson University President Doug Lee signed the ACUPCC, and 
since that time our goals have been codified in the Stetson Environmental Stewardship Plan that is updated 
every other year, approved by our Board of Trustees, and implemented by faculty and staff. The plan includes 
targets toward achieving our goal of being carbon neutral, action steps, and periodic measurement and 
reporting of our results.  Key components of that plan include: 
 

 Commitment to being leaders in design of our built environment.  Stetson constructed the first LEED 
Certified Building in Florida.  There are currently four LEED Certified buildings on campus.   

 Recognition as a “Tree Campus USA” for its commitment to native tree plantings. 

 Stetson has achieved “water neutrality” in the sense that it reuses an equal amount of water as it 
withdraws. 

 Stetson has earned national recognition for its recycling program. 
 
These efforts have not gone unrecognized. This spring, Stetson University was noted as a "Green College" in 
the “Princeton Review’s Guide to 353 Green Colleges: 2015 Edition." The guide recognized Stetson for its 
commitment to environmental education, environmentally responsible purchasing, efficient use and 
conservation of resources, minimizing solid waste and hazardous materials, and promoting a green campus 
design that incorporates plants native to Florida. 
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Each of these values will be included in the design for the Stetson Aquatic Center and the ECHO project 
construction will utilize sustainable materials. A major component of ECHO Project is removal of the existing 
restroom facilities from the site and connection of public restroom facilities to central wastewater treatment 
in order to protect Lake Beresford from nutrient pollution. As with all facilities at Stetson University, recycle 
bins will be made readily available to the public.   
 
Site planning has taken into consideration protection of wetlands.  A wetlands delineation has been 
accomplished and the proposed project will be buffered to protect the wetlands.  The canoe/kayak launch site 
will be buffered and protected with planted shoreline vegetation. 
 
Opening Date.  It is anticipated that the site will be made available to the public on or before Spring 2018. 
 
There are no additional phases planned for the ECHO Project and construction of the public access 
enhancements will take place in conjunction with overall construction of the Stetson Aquatic Center. 
 
2.3 Drawings: (Drawings are required by all applicants. Drawings must fold to an 8 ½ X 11 size to fit securely and neatly in the 

application booklet. Drawings must be to scale with a bar scale and include a legend) 

⌧ Street locator map 
⌧ Site Plan 
⌧ Preliminary and schematic drawings 
⎕ Design and development documents 
⎕ Construction documents 
⌧    
 Boundary Survey 
 Wetland/Tree Survey 
 Public Access Easement Survey 
 

 
 

Street Locator Map 
Stetson Aquatic Center 

Alhambra Avenue / Lake Beresford / Unincorporated West Volusia 
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SECTION 3: BUDGET DETAIL/MATCHING FUNDS  
3.1 PROJECT BUDGET DETAIL CHART: Fill out budget chart provided, adding rows as needed.  Place match monies in column 
corresponding to appropriate “Match Code”: Explanations of match codes can be found in the guidelines on page 23. 
 
 

CHART 3.1: CONSTRUCTION PHASE EXPENDITURES 
ADD ROWS AS NEEDED 

UC + LM + 
 

In-Kind PSC  = Match ECHO Total 

Parking $90,000    $90,000 $40,000 $130,000 

        

Subtotal $90,000    $90,000 $40,000 $130,000 

Public Access Trail – Canoe/kayak Launch Area      $45,000 $ ,000 

        

Subtotal      $45,000 $ ,000 

Outdoor Pavilion      $35,000 $35,000 

        

Subtotal      $35,000 $35,000 

Boardwalks      $80,000 $80,000 

        

Subtotal      $80,000 $80,000 

ECHO & Historic Signage $10,000    $10,000 $15,000 $25,000 

        

Subtotal $10,000    $10,000 $15,000 $25,000 

Public Restrooms      $150,000 $150,000 

        

Subtotal      $150,000 $150,000 

Sewer & Water $300,000    $300,000  $300,000 

        

Subtotal $300,000    $300,000  $300,000 

Fencing      $35,000 $35,000 

        

Subtotal      $35,000 $35,000 

        

     MATCH ECHO  PROJECT  

PROJECT TOTALS $400,000    $400,000 $400,000 $800,000 
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3.2 MATCH DOCUMENTATION 
Please see page 25 in the guide for a more in depth explanation of documentation. 
 
1.) Provide official documentation of Match: 

a. Unencumbered Cash (UC): 
i.  ⌧ Current Bank Statement OR  

ii. ⎕Copy of signed resolution including pledged dollar amount, project name and dates 
the funds will be available 

b. Irrevocable Pledges (UC): 
i. ⎕ Notarized letter stating the pledged amount, the purpose of the pledge and the date 

the funds will be available (must include an itemized budget if pledge is for services). 
1. Pledged funds must be in the bank prior to the Grant Review Panel. 

c. In-Kind Services (IK) services/donations must have taken place no more than 7 years prior to 
the project: 

i. ⎕ Itemized list of products/services to include name of person/organization, 
description of goods/services, fair market value of in-kind contribution and date 
goods/services were provided. 

ii. ⎕ Future in-kind donations must have notarized letter from donor describing 
items/services and value of such. 

iii. ⎕ Previously provided in-kind service/donations do not require backup in this 
application, however, official documentation must be available for review upon request. 

d. Previously Spent Cash (PSC) 
i. ⎕ the encumbrances or cash expenditures completed within the seven (7) year period 

prior to the application.  
e. Land Match (LM) (trails of the County’s Master Plan, projects on State or Federal land and 

property donated by the County are not eligible for match): 
i. ⎕ Copy of deed  

ii. ⎕ Copy of appraisal (property appraisal assessment or recent outside appraisal) 
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3.2 Match Documentation – Current Bank Statement 
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SECTION 4: OPERATING FORECAST DETAIL  
 

4.1 OPERATING FORECAST NARRATIVE 
1.) Compose a narrative explaining the use of the facility/project and related costs.  Narrative should 

include what staff will be needed, what additional maintenance will be required, what new programs 
will be added, etc. 

2.) Provide Business Plan, Feasibility Study and Marketing Plan. 
3.) List a fee schedule or state “No fees will be charged” (schedule should include members, non-

members, reduced prices, etc.) 
4.) Describe Maintenance and Replacement Plan (including fund source and depreciation plan). 

 
Facilities Plan. The use of the public access facilities by the general public will be managed in conjunction with 
the overall Stetson Aquatic Center.  The Donor has directed that $1.5 million of the $6 million private donation 
as an endowment for the Stetson Aquatic Center.  This funding will be invested in to Stetson’s endowment.   
 
Stetson’s endowment on average yields a return of 7.55%, with an annual distribution of 5.0%, an annual 
amount that will play a vital role in helping Stetson maintain the site.  For example, in the first full year of 
operations of the Aquatic Center, using the return and distribution percentages above, the endowment will 
produce approximately $80,500 in funds to support the facility.  In addition, Stetson annually sets aside funds 
for future renewal-and-replacement projects for existing buildings and facilities.  Both of those sources of 
funding represent key components to Stetson’s business plan to support the facility over the forty year 
commitment Stetson will make to the County of Volusia and beyond the life of the grant.  Indeed, the 
endowment and renewal-and-replacement funds represent a solid sustainability plan.   
 
Stetson Facilities Management provides for maintenance, grounds, and repairs across the campus.  Facilities 
Management will have overall responsibility for all such activities at the Stetson Aquatic Center.  Facilities 
Management staff undertakes annual review of structures open to the public to determine whether 
maintenance or replacement is appropriate.   It is anticipated that funds from the endowment and fees 
generated from team use will provide ongoing revenue to maintenance and replacement.  
 
In addition, Stetson Public Safety will be part of the operating costs of the site.  Stetson Public Safety will 
operate regular patrols and provide for the safety needs of staff, the public.  Further, Stetson plans to use 
student employees to manage the site for logistics and scheduling to provide for optimum use of the site for 
the public and for special events. 
 
Feasibility Study.  A feasibility study was prepared by Stetson University to support an appropriations request 
to the Florida Legislature in 2014.  The study also served as the proposal to the private donor which led to her 
gift to Stetson for funding the project.  The Feasibility study focused on use of the facility for rowing teams, 
regattas, and special events at the facility, and was based upon a forecast prepared by the Stetson Athletics 
Department which showed optimum use of the site.    It showed a return on investment to the community 
through hotel room reservation based upon 10,000 room nights per year.  The feasibility forecast shows $3 
million annual impact to the community.  A copy of the proposal is attached as an appendix to this application. 
 
Marketing Plan.  Stetson University has a professional marketing office and staff that will assist the Aquatic 

Center by addressing its’ different audiences and participants through a multi-channel plan.   
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The initial audiences that have been identified are: 

 Stetson University community, students, faculty, staff, alumni, donors and parents 

 Academic, institutional and environmentally conscious groups and organizations with a focus on water 
usage, management and biology 

 General public with a specific interest in rowing and paddle sports 

 Professional collegiate crew programs, rowing enthusiasts and other amateur, high school and 
university level rowing teams 

 

With these key audiences identified, Stetson University Marketing and Communications will, in tandem with 

stakeholders from each key area, develop a unified brand identity for the Aquatic Center with the objective of 

delivering a compelling and cohesive visual presence. This will include the development of logo/s, typography, 

and color pallet/s, visuals including signage and brand identity guidelines – all in support of the Stetson 

University parent brand identity. This process will include seeking necessary trademark licensing for new 

marks. 

 

Stetson University community, students, faculty, staff, alumni, donors, parents – marketing will reach out to 

the Stetson University community through existing digital, traditional and face-to-face channels utilizing 

internal information sharing systems to promote Aquatic Center events, meetings, symposiums, lectures, how-

to demonstrations, regattas and community events. Some of the channels include: 

 Stetson Today website, http://www.stetson.edu/today/ 

 Stetson University Athletics website, http://www.gohatters.com/ 

 Stetson University FB page 

 Stetson University Twitter account 

 Stetson Magazine.  A copy of a recent Stetson Magazine Article announcing the Stetson Aquatic Center 
is included in the Appendix. 

 

Academic, institutional and environmentally conscious groups and organizations with a focus on water usage 

and management – promotion and planning for the Institute for Water and Environmental Resilience lecture 

and meetings will primarily be directed through existing conferences digital and traditional publications. 

Examples of the type of event follow, but given the timeline to completion of the center we are not 

participating at this time. 

 Sustainable Water Management Conference 

 American Water Resources Association  Annual Conference  

 71st Annual Soil and Water Conservation Society Conference,  
Managing Great River Landscapes 
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General public with a specific interest in  

University utilizes a variety of channels for its current local and regional outreach including public radio, local 

radio, flyers, digital calendar postings, event emails and direct mail and would continue to use these channels 

as needed and dependent on the individual events or learning opportunities. Some examples are listed below. 

 Florida Paddling Trails Association website and calendar, http://www.floridapaddlingtrails.com/ 

 Paddle Florida, http://www.paddleflorida.net/ 

 Paddling.net, http://www.paddling.net/places/FL/ 

 WMFE radio http://www.wmfe.org/ 
 

Rowing enthusiasts and other amateur, and high school to universities rowing teams – marketing and 

communications for rowing specific groups and organizations will concentrate in those specialized events, 

meetings, websites and social media specific to the rowing and collegiate rowing community, including the 

Stetson University athletics website for Men’s and Women’s rowing. 

 

 Stetson University Athletics website, http://www.gohatters.com/ 

 US Rowing camp directory, http://www.usrowing.org/domesticrowing/campdirectory 

 Rowing news and information site, Row2k,  http://www.row2k.com/teams/ 

 Rowing Magazine’s FB page, https://www.facebook.com/RowingNews 
 

Additionally, the Aquatic Center with its unique mix of university athletics, public use and enthusiasts and 

academic and research focused environmental studies offers multiple opportunities for media relations 

outreach to local, regional and national media.   

 

Work in media relations and community outreach will begin three-to-six months prior to the opening of the 

Aquatic Center as an opportunity to build excitement for the center and its multi-use functions, as well as 

educate and inform the community, corporate entities and peer institutions. 

 

The site will also be marketed as an eco-heritage destination.  Stetson will provide information to the River of 
Lakes Heritage Trail Corridor and West Volusia Advertising Authority.  http://riveroflakesheritagecorridor.org/  
Informational materials will be provided to them as well as for the Volusia Parks Culture Recreation App.  
http://www.volusia.org/core/fileparse.php/4392/urlt/App_Instructions.pdf 
 
Fee Schedule.   
There are no plans to charge the general public for access to the lake, canoe trail, or launch facilities 
or parking for that access. As set forth above, Stetson will charge fees to other collegiate institutions, club 
teams, or national teams for annual regattas and rowing practices, but no fees to the public to view these 
events are contemplated at this time though fees for parking for regattas in the future may be required.  
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4.2 FISCAL STABILITY  
1.) Fill out Form 4.2 Business Information. 

 

4.2 BUSINESS INFORMATION 
Operational funding for this organization Prior Prior 

Completed 
 FY 12 - 13 

Prior  
 Completed 
FY 13 - 14 

 
Last Year  
FY 14 - 15 

Current Year 
Projected 
FY 15 - 16 

Fundraising, Memberships, Donations, etc. 12,744,134 21,962,258 13,022,524 15,000,000 

County Grant(s)/Funds (other than ECHO)     

Grant(s)/Funds - other (non county) 123,651,659 116,406,963 125,947,637 117,882,000 

Cash Donations     

TOTALS 136,359,793 138,369,221 138,970,161 132,882,000 

Administrative Costs   7,871,281 7,209,522 8,044,607 8,306,000 

Program Costs 38,026,881 41,605,133 41,377,814 44,755,000 

Educational & Educational Outreach Programs 35,075 22,170 25,572         31,000 

Contractor Services (for this project)    205,000 

Marketing & Advertising      659,028 755,739 731,595 794,000 

Payroll Total Expense 66,280,954 71,771,733 74,876,926 78,791,000 

TOTALS 112,873,219 121,364,297 125,056,514 132,882,000 

Number of Full-time Employees 790 828 820 817 

Number of Part-time Employees 165 208 190 192 

Volunteer Hours Not collected Not collected Not collected Not collected 

Value of Volunteer Hours (@$____ hr) Not collected Not collected Not collected Not collected 

TOTALS 955 1,036 1,010 1,009 

 
2.) Has this organization defaulted on any grant in the past five years? If so, please explain. 

NO 
 

4.3 FINANCIAL AUDIT/REVIEW/AGREED UPON PROCEDURES 
 

1.) Insert the appropriate required documents listed in the Application Guide on page 30 & 31. 
 

See following documents that consist of the: 
Stetson University Financial and Compliance Report, June 30, 2015 by McGladrey LLP 
Most Recent Month-End Financial Statement 
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Stetson University 
 
Financial and Compliance Report 
June 30, 2015 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Stetson University, Inc. 
DeLand, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Stetson University, Inc. (the 
University), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015 and 
2014, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.  
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the University as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
that collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations, and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, and is 
not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.  The accompanying Supplementary 
Disaggregated Statement of Financial Position is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not 
a required part of the consolidated basic financial statements. 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards and Supplementary 
Disaggregated Statement of Financial Position is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also issued our reports dated October 7, 2015 
and September 26, 2014, on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of those reports is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or compliance.  Those reports are an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the University’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
Orlando, Florida 
October 7, 2015 
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Stetson University, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2015 and 2014
(In Thousands)

2015 2014
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14,177  $            15,452  $            
Restricted cash (Note 1) 36,125                -                      
Short-term investments 5,071                  2,578                  
Notes and accounts receivable, net (Note 2) 13,351                15,072                
Pledges receivable, net (Note 3) 17,868                14,610                
Inventories 242                     260                     
Investments (Notes 4 and 15) 203,553              202,182              
Funds held in trust by others (Note 6) 9,584                  9,931                  
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 7) 152,230              135,447              
Other assets 3,200                  3,077                  
Investment in affiliated entity (Note 13) 3,859                  3,871                  

Total assets 459,260  $          402,480  $          

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 5,000  $              5,115  $              
Accrued liabilities 7,758                  7,190                  
Student deposits and other current liabilities 5,485                  4,832                  
Postretirement benefits (Note 10) 6,827                  7,952                  
Refundable government loan funds 5,148                  5,039                  
Annuities payable 2,184                  2,381                  
Long-term debt (Note 8) 107,484              54,067                

Total liabilities 139,886              86,576                

Net Assets
Unrestricted 135,958              138,483              
Temporarily restricted (Note 14) 50,589                50,135                
Permanently restricted (Note 14) 132,827              127,286              

Total net assets 319,374              315,904              
Total liabilities and net assets 459,260  $          402,480  $          

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
 

Stetson Aquatic Center ECHO Grant 37



 

4 

Stetson University, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2015
(In Thousands)

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Operating revenues

Revenues, gains, and other support:

Tuition and fees (net of scholarships and

fellowships of $68,530) 82,048  $              -$                      -$                      82,048  $              

Contributions 1,008                    2,978                    -                        3,986                    

Income and realized gains on investments – net of fees 412                       (1)                          -                        411                       

Endowment income used in operations 2,776                    6,106                    -                        8,882                    

Sales of educational services 3,748                    -                        -                        3,748                    

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 20,971                  -                        -                        20,971                  

Government grants 1,498                    -                        -                        1,498                    

Other 2,679                    70                         -                        2,749                    

Unrealized loss on investments (154)                      -                        -                        (154)                      

Net assets released from restrictions 9,053                    (9,053)                   -                        -                        

Total operating revenues, gains and

other support 124,039                100                       -                        124,139                

Operating expenses

Educational and general:

Instruction 51,305                  -                        -                        51,305                  

Research 380                       -                        -                        380                       

Public service 1,473                    -                        -                        1,473                    

Academic support 13,792                  -                        -                        13,792                  

Student services 22,450                  -                        -                        22,450                  

Institutional support 20,150                  -                        -                        20,150                  

Total education and general 109,550                -                        -                        109,550                

Auxiliary enterprises 16,430                  -                        -                        16,430                  

Total operating expenses 125,980                -                        -                        125,980                

Change in net assets from operations (1,941)                   100                       -                        (1,841)                   

Nonoperating activities

Contributions for non-operating activities -                        5,382                    5,726                    11,108                  

Funds held in trust by others 78                         249                       (292)                      35                         

Income and realized gains on investments – net of fees 3,582                    8,903                    -                        12,485                  

Endowment income used in operations (2,776)                   (6,106)                   -                        (8,882)                   

Net unrealized loss from investments (2,308)                   (5,436)                   -                        (7,744)                   

Change in value of split interest agreements -                        (18)                        (100)                      (118)                      

Postretirement changes other than net periodic cost 1,125                    -                        -                        1,125                    

Other (363)                      (113)                      207                       (269)                      

Net assets released from restrictions 2,495                    (2,495)                   -                        -                        

Decrease in investment in affiliated entity -                        (12)                        -                        (12)                        

Loss from early extinguishment of debt (2,417)                   -                        -                        (2,417)                   

Change in net assets from non-operating activities (584)                      354                       5,541                    5,311                    

Change in net assets (2,525)                   454                       5,541                    3,470                    

Net assets

Beginning of period 138,483                50,135                  127,286                315,904                

End of period 135,958  $            50,589  $              132,827  $            319,374  $            

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
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Stetson University, Inc.

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2014
(In Thousands)

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Operating revenues

Revenues, gains, and other support:

Tuition and fees (net of scholarships and

fellowships of $61,927) 79,541  $              -$                      -$                      79,541  $              

Contributions 1,994                    4,278                    -                        6,272                    

Income and realized gains on investments – net of fees 553                       (31)                        -                        522                       

Endowment income used in operations 2,403                    4,899                    -                        7,302                    

Sales of educational services 3,646                    -                        -                        3,646                    

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 18,812                  -                        -                        18,812                  

Government grants 1,419                    -                        -                        1,419                    

Other 3,377                    (29)                        -                        3,348                    

Unrealized loss on investments (240)                      -                        -                        (240)                      

Net assets released from restrictions 11,525                  (11,525)                 -                        -                        

Total operating revenues, gains and

other support 123,030                (2,408)                   -                        120,622                

Operating expenses

Educational and general:

Instruction 49,423                  -                        -                        49,423                  

Research 696                       -                        -                        696                       

Public service 1,056                    -                        -                        1,056                    

Academic support 13,602                  -                        -                        13,602                  

Student services 21,793                  -                        -                        21,793                  

Institutional support 19,184                  -                        -                        19,184                  

Total education and general 105,754                -                        -                        105,754                

Auxiliary enterprises 16,265                  -                        -                        16,265                  

Total operating expenses 122,019                -                        -                        122,019                

Change in net assets from operations 1,011                    (2,408)                   -                        (1,397)                   

Nonoperating activities

Contributions for non-operating activities -                        2,934                    8,611                    11,545                  

Funds held in trust by others 81                         235                       694                       1,010                    

Income and realized gains on investments – net of fees 4,135                    8,323                    -                        12,458                  

Endowment income used in operations (2,403)                   (4,899)                   -                        (7,302)                   

Net unrealized gain from investments 5,131                    10,279                  -                        15,410                  

Change in value of split interest agreements -                        (26)                        67                         41                         

Postretirement changes other than net periodic cost 313                       -                        -                        313                       

Other (98)                        (124)                      (113)                      (335)                      

Net assets released from restrictions 1,363                    (1,363)                   -                        -                        

Increase in investment in affiliated entity -                        401                       -                        401                       

Change in net assets from non-operating activities 8,522                    15,760                  9,259                    33,541                  

Change in net assets 9,533                    13,352                  9,259                    32,144                  

Net assets

Beginning of period 128,950                36,783                  118,027                283,760                

End of period 138,483  $            50,135  $              127,286  $            315,904  $            

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
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Stetson University, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
(In Thousands)

2015 2014
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Change in net assets 3,470  $              32,144  $            
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Contributions restricted for long-term investment (7,097)                 (18,062)               
Depreciation and amortization 8,517                  8,392                  
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (269)                    34                       
Income and net realized gains from long-term investments (12,485)               (12,458)               
Net unrealized (gain)/loss from long-term investments 7,741                  (15,410)               
Amortization of bond premium and issuance costs (81)                      1                         
Change in value of split-interest agreements 164                     (87)                      
Change in investment in affiliated entity 12                       (401)                    
Loss on bond refunding 2,417                  -                      
Accrued interest financed by new debt issue 564                     -                      
Forgiveness of long-term debt (15)                      -                      
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Notes and accounts receivable 1,837                  (5,316)                 
Pledges receivable (3,258)                 6,344                  
Inventories 18                       -                      
Funds held in trust by others 347                     (625)                    
Other assets (123)                    (34)                      

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (52)                      150                     
Accrued liabilities 568                     567                     
Student deposits and other current liabilities 653                     1,053                  
Postretirement benefits (1,125)                 (313)                    

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,803                  (4,021)                 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (25,397)               (7,448)                 
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 366                     63                       
Student loans issued (806)                    (923)                    
Proceeds from student loan collections 690                     672                     
Purchases of investments (210,670)             (115,762)             
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 211,484              111,161              

Net cash used in investing activities (24,333)               (12,237)               

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from contributions received for:

Investment in endowment 4,248                  15,048                
Investment in plant and other 2,849                  3,014                  

7,097                  18,062                

(Continued)  
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Stetson University, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
(In Thousands)

2015 2014
Other financing activities:

Increase in federal student loan funds 109                     99                       
Proceeds from long-term debt 50,877                -                      
Net bond proceeds in restricted cash (36,125)               -                      
Payments on capital leases (63)                      (81)                      
Payments on long-term debt (345)                    (2,334)                 
Payments on annuities payable (295)                    (320)                    

14,158                (2,636)                 
Net cash provided by financing activities 21,255                15,426                
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1,275)                 (832)                    

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning 15,452                16,284                

Ending 14,177  $            15,452  $            

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid 1,923  $              2,163  $              
Bond proceeds used for refunding of prior debt 56,168  $            -$                    

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of organization:  Stetson University, Inc. (the University) is a nonprofit institution subject to the 
rules and regulations of IRS Section 501(c)(3).  The University consists of four separate campuses at the 
following locations: 
 
Stetson University (main campus)    Stetson University Center at Celebration 
421 North Woodland Boulevard     800 Celebration Avenue, Suite 104 
DeLand, FL 32723      Celebration, FL 34747 
 
Stetson University College of Law    Tampa Law Center and Campus 
1401 61st Street South      1700 North Tampa Street 
Gulfport, FL 33707      Tampa, FL 33602 
  
Consolidated with the University’s financial statements is the activity for GSH Investments, LLC, in which 
Stetson is the sole member.  GSH Investments was created during fiscal year 2015 to acquire and 
manage a 24-unit apartment complex during its transition from a privately occupied residential facility to a 
student occupied residence hall.  The property will be managed as a rental property through March 2016, 
after which time the University will purchase the property from the LLC and operate it as a student 
residence facility.  
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues and support are reported when earned or unconditionally received.  Expenses are recorded 
when purchases of materials or services are made.  Revenues earned and expenses incurred applicable 
to the current period are accrued while those applicable to future periods are deferred. 
 
A summary of the University’s significant accounting policies follows: 
 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  In the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements, net assets that have similar characteristics have been combined into similar categories as 
follows: 
 
Permanently restricted:  Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained 
permanently by the University.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the University to use all or 
part of the income earned on related assets for general or specific purposes.   
 
Temporarily restricted:  Net assets that carry restrictions that expire upon the passage of a prescribed 
period of time or upon the occurrence of a stated event as specified by the donor. Included in this 
category are gifts held by the University pending their use in accordance with donor stipulations, 
unexpended gifts for capital projects, and pledges. 
 
Unrestricted:  Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.  Unrestricted net assets 
may be designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited 
by contractual agreements with outside parties, such as governmental grant agreements. 
 
Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets.  Expirations of donor-imposed 
stipulations that simultaneously increase one class of net assets and decrease another are reported as 
reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets as net assets released from restrictions in 
the accompanying statements of activities.  
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Operating and nonoperating activities:  The statements of activities report the change in net assets 
from operating and nonoperating activities.  Operating revenues consist of substantially all the activity of 
the University except for certain items specifically considered to be of a nonoperating nature. 
Contributions included in nonoperating activities consist of scholarship bequests and other restricted gifts 
not solicited as part of the annual fundraising campaigns, gifts restricted for the acquisition of capital 
assets, and gifts restricted to endowment funds.  Nonoperating activities also include realized and 
unrealized gains/losses on endowment income not used in operations, change in net present value of 
split interest agreements, change in actuarial value of the postretirement liability, and significant items of 
an unusual or nonrecurring nature. 
 
Classification of gifts:  The University reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted contributions if 
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.  When a donor 
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
accompanying statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  When restrictions are met 
in the year of contribution receipt, such contributions are shown as temporarily restricted revenues and as 
net assets released from restrictions. 
 
The University reports gifts of land, buildings, and equipment as unrestricted contributions unless explicit 
donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.  Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit 
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used 
to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted contributions.  Absent explicit donor stipulations 
about how those long-lived assets must be maintained, the University reports expirations of donor 
restrictions as unrestricted when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service. 
 
In the event a donor makes changes to the nature of a restricted gift that affect its classification among 
the net asset categories, such amounts are reflected as reclassifications in the revenues section of the 
accompanying statements of activities. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents:  The University considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents, except for those short-term 
financial instruments included in the University’s investment accounts. 
 
The University maintains cash accounts with several large financial institutions.  All accounts at each 
financial institution are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 
per bank.  The University has cash deposited that exceeds the federally insured deposit amount.  
Management does not anticipate nonperformance by the financial institutions.  The University also places 
its cash equivalents and short-term investments with high-quality institutions. 
 
Restricted cash at June 30, 2015 consists of approximately $36.1 million of proceeds from the Volusia 
County Educational Facilities Authority Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds of 2015.  This balance is 
subject to restrictions imposed by the bond covenants and limited to use on authorized bond projects.  
The entire balance is held on deposit with a financial institution and guaranteed by the FDIC up to the 
$250,000 limit mentioned in the prior paragraph.  See Note 8 for further details concerning the Volusia 
County Educational Facilities Authority Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds of 2015. 
 
Short-term investments:  Short-term investments include assets invested in a managed fund that holds 
highly liquid fixed- income securities, short-term U.S. Treasury securities, and other short-term 
investments with varying maturities for an overall fund average of less than one year.  All short-term 
investments are recorded at fair value. 
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Student accounts receivable:  Student accounts receivable are reported net of any anticipated losses 
due to uncollectible accounts and are included in notes and accounts receivable in the accompanying 
statements of financial position.  The University considers an account to be past due when a student still 
has an account balance after the final payment due date of the semester.  Past due accounts are subject 
to past due letter collection efforts.  If an account balance still exists at the conclusion of the four- to six-
month collection period, the account is written off and placed with a third-party collection agency.  
Historical write-off history as a percentage of outstanding receivable balances is used to help establish an 
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts.  The University assesses a finance charge against past 
due student receivables that are deferred under a monthly payment plan. 
 
Student loans receivable:  The University makes uncollateralized loans to students based on financial 
need. Student loans are funded through the Federal Perkins loan program or institutional resources.  At 
June 30, 2015 and 2014, student loans represented 1.1% and 1.3% of total assets, respectively. 
 

Student loans receivable are reported net of any anticipated losses due to uncollectible loans and are 
included in notes and accounts receivable in the accompanying statements of financial position.  The 
University considers a loan to be in default when it has been past due for a period of four months.  Past 
due loans are subject to internal collection efforts for a period of six months and are subsequently placed 
with third-party collection agencies.  The allowance for uncollectible loans is calculated using the unpaid 
balances of all defaulted loans and applying an allowance factor based on the length of time since the 
most recent payment.  This calculation is performed for both the Federal Perkins and institutional loans.  
The Federal Perkins Loan program has provisions for deferment, forbearance, and cancellation of 
individual loans.  The deferment and forbearance provisions of the Federal Perkins Loan program are 
generally applied to institutional loans as well. Interest continues to accrue while the loan is placed with a 
collection agency. 

 
Pledges receivable:  Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year 
are recorded at net realizable value, which approximates fair value at date of the pledges.  Unconditional 
promises to give in future periods are initially recorded at estimated fair value (net of discount) and 
subsequently amortized over the expected payment period, net of an allowance for uncollectible pledges.  
The discount rates are determined at the time the unconditional promise to give is initially received, and 
are determined using a risk adjusted rate applied to most likely cash flows.  Amortization of the discount 
is included in contribution revenue.  The allowance for uncollectible pledges is based on pledge activity.  
Large pledges are reviewed on a case-by-case basis.  The write-off history as a percentage of 
outstanding contributions receivables is considered in establishing an appropriate allowance. 
 
Inventories:  Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and consist 
primarily of print shop inventory and maintenance supplies. 
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Investments:  Investments in marketable equity securities and debt securities, including mutual funds, 
are recorded at their estimated fair values, which are based on quoted market prices or recognized 
pricing services.  Alternative investments (nontraditional, not readily-marketable assets) are stated at fair 
value as estimated in an unquoted market. Individual investment holdings within the alternative 
investments may, in turn, include investments in both nonmarketable and market-traded securities. 
Valuation of these investments may be determined by the investment manager.  Values may be based on 
historical cost, appraisals, or other estimates that require varying degrees of judgment.  Gifts of 
investments are recorded at their fair value (based upon quotations or appraisals) at date of gift.  
Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the trade date.  Except for investments that are held 
separately for specific reasons, investments are maintained in a pool.  Gifts that are invested in the pool 
are assigned units of participation in the pool based upon their market value on the date of gift and the 
most recently determined unit market value for the existing units of participation.  Subsequent allocations 
of annual income of the independent pool are based upon the number of units of participation.  
Withdrawals are based upon the spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees and follow the total 
return concept of utilizing both income and realized gain.  The market value of the units of participation is 
calculated quarterly. 
 
The University invests in a combination of investment securities, which are exposed to various risks, such 
as interest rate, market and credit risk.  Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment 
securities and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of investment securities, it is at least 
reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term could materially affect the University’s 
investment balance reported in the statements of financial position. 
 
Split-interest agreements:  The University’s investments include deferred giving vehicles subject to split-
interest agreements.  Two different types of agreements are currently maintained:  Charitable Gift Annuity 
and Charitable Remainder Unitrust. 
 
Charitable Gift Annuities are irrevocable gifts under which the University agrees in turn to pay a life 
annuity to the donor or designated beneficiary.  The contributed funds and the attendant liabilities 
immediately become part of the general assets and liabilities of the University, subject to the University’s 
maintaining an actuarial reserve in accordance with Florida law.  Charitable Remainder Unitrust gifts are 
time-restricted contributions not available to the University until after the death of the beneficiary, who, 
while living, receives an annual payout from the Trust based on a fixed percentage of the market value of 
the invested funds. 
 
The University initially values deferred gifts of cash at face value and those of equities at market value, 
then these values are actuarially discounted.  Published IRS discount rates are employed to determine 
the net present value of both contributions and liabilities pertaining to these deferred giving arrangements. 
 
Of the approximately $203.6 million recorded as investments in the accompanying statement of financial 
position at June 30, 2015, $2.6 million represents split-interest agreements, and the associated liabilities 
total $2.2 million.  Of the approximately $202.2 million recorded as investments in the accompanying 
statement of financial position at June 30, 2014, $2.9 million represented split-interest agreements, and 
the associated liabilities totaled $2.4 million. 
 
Property, plant and equipment:  Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost at the date of 
acquisition or at fair value at the date of donation in the case of gifts.  Expenditures that materially 
increase values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are capitalized, as are interest costs during the 
period of construction on amounts borrowed for such expenditures.  Property, plant, and equipment are 
removed from the records and any gain or loss is recognized at the time of disposal. 
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The University collects works of art, historical treasures, and similar assets, which reflect the history of the 
institution and/or support its educational purpose.  The collections are maintained for public exhibition, 
education, and research in furtherance of public service. Collections are protected, kept unencumbered, 
cared for, and preserved.  The University capitalizes collections it receives as gifts.  These collections are 
included in property, plant, and equipment and are not depreciated. 
 
The University evaluates, on an on-going basis, the carrying value of property and equipment based on 
estimated future undiscounted cash flows.  In the event such cash flows are not expected to be sufficient 
to recover the carrying value of the assets, the useful lives of the assets are revised or the assets are 
written down to their estimated fair values. 
 
Depreciation is recorded on the straight-line basis.  The estimated useful life of land improvements, 
buildings, and building improvements is five to 40 years.  The estimated useful life of furniture and 
equipment and library books is three to ten years. 
 
Prepaid rents:  The University contributed to the construction of the Conrad Park baseball stadium in 
DeLand, Florida.  In consideration for the $1.3 million contribution, the University was given a lease to use 
the stadium for 20 years through 2019.  The prepaid rents are amortized over the life of the lease and, as 
of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the University had $228,000 and $293,000, respectively, included in other 
assets in the statements of financial position pertaining to this lease. 
 
Student deposits:  Student deposits represent monies collected in advance for deposits and summer 
tuition. 
 
Original issue premiums:  The original issue premiums on bonds are being amortized using the 
effective interest method over the life of the bonds. 
 
Deferred financing costs:  Deferred financing costs consist of bond issuance costs.  These costs are 
being amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the related bonds and are netted with 
Long-term debt in the accompanying statements of financial position (see Note 8 for additional 
discussion). 
 
Income taxes:  The University is exempt from federal income taxation as defined by Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code and is generally exempt from state income taxes under the provisions of the 
Florida Nonprofit Corporation Act.  Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been reflected in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
 
Management evaluated the University’s tax positions and concluded that the College had taken no 
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements to comply with the 
provisions of the Income Taxes Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (FASB ASC).   
 
Postretirement benefits:  The University accounts for its postretirement benefits on an accrual basis as 
discussed in Note 10. 
 
Estimates:  The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements; and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Tuition revenue and discounts:  Tuition is recognized when earned and is not refundable except as 
noted in the provisions of the University’s catalog.  The portion of tuition revenue for the summer term that 
is earned subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2015, is treated as deferred revenue and is included 
with student deposits and other current liabilities on the accompanying statements of financial position.  
The University presents amounts expended for scholarships and fellowships as a reduction of tuition and 
fees revenue on the accompanying statement of activities. 
 
Advertising costs:  The costs of advertising are charged to operations in the year incurred.  Advertising 
costs amounted to approximately $710,000 and $717,000 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. 
 
Functional expenses:  Expenses are primarily reported in the statement of activities in categories 
recommended by the National Association of College and University Business Officers.  The University’s 
primary program service is instruction and research.  Expenses reported as public service, academic 
support, student services, institutional support, and auxiliary enterprises are incurred in support of this 
primary program service.  The University’s fund-raising expenses were approximately $3.2 million and 
$2.8 million for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are included in institutional 
support in the statements of activities. 
 
Reclassification:  Certain amounts have been reclassified from prior year consolidated financial 
statements to conform with current year presentation.  Such reclassifications had no effect on net assets 
or change in net assets as previously reported. 
 
Recent accounting pronouncements:  In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2014-09.  The amendments in this Update create Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, and supersede the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, 
including most industry-specific revenue recognition guidance throughout the Industry Topics of the 
Codification.  In addition, the amendments supersede the cost guidance in Subtopic 605-35 Revenue 
Recognition – Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts, and create new Subtopic 340-40, Other 
Assets and Deferred Costs – Contracts with Customers.  The core principle of Topic 606 is that an entity 
recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services.  The amendments in this Update will be effective for the University’s fiscal year 2019 with early 
adoption permitted with certain restrictions.  Management has not evaluated the impact of this Update on 
the consolidated financial statements but believes such impact will not be material. 
 
In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement:  Disclosures for Investments in 
Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent).  The amendments in this 
update remove the requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair 
value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient.  However, sufficient 
information must be provided to permit reconciliation of the fair value of assets categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.  The amendments also 
remove the requirement to make certain disclosures for all investments that are eligible to be measured at 
fair value using the net asset value per share practical expedient.  The amendments in this Update are 
effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015.  For all other 
entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016.  
Early adoption is permitted.  Upon adoption, the amendments shall be applied retrospectively to all 
periods presented.  The University adopted the provisions of ASU 2015-07 in fiscal year 2015.  See 
Note 15 for further details. 
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) 
Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.  This ASU requires that debt issuance costs related 
to a recognized debt liability be presented in the statement of financial position as a direct deduction from 
the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts.  An entity should apply the new 
guidance on a retrospective basis, wherein the statement of financial position of each individual period 
presented should be adjusted to reflect the period-specific effects of applying the new guidance. Upon 
transition, an entity is required to comply with the applicable disclosures for a change in an accounting 
principle.  These disclosures include the nature of and reason for the change in accounting principle, the 
transition method, a description of the prior period information that has been retrospectively adjusted, and 
the effect of the change on the financial statement line items (that is, debt issuance cost asset and the 
debt liability).  For public business entities, the amendments are effective for financial statements issued 
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years.  For all 
other entities, the amendments are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016.  The 
University adopted the provisions of ASU 2015-03 in fiscal year 2015.  See Note 8 for further details. 
 

Note 2. Notes and Accounts Receivable 

2015 2014

Student accounts receivable (net of allowance of $419 in 2015
and $425 in 2014) 1,909  $            1,520  $            

Student loans receivable (net of allowance of $1,957 in 2015
and $1,605 in 2014) 4,926                5,190                

Grants receivable 4,659                4,079                
Accrued interest receivable 869                   689                   
Estate bequests 165                   1,725                
Other receivables 823                   1,869                

13,351  $          15,072  $          

(In Thousands)

 
At June 30, student loans consisted of the following: 
 

2015 2014

Federal Perkins loan program 6,303  $            6,174  $            
Institutional programs 580                   621                   

6,883                6,795                
Less allowance for doubtful accounts:

Beginning of year (1,605)               (1,635)               
Adjustments (363)                  19                     
Write-offs 11                     11                     
End of year (1,957)               (1,605)               

Student loans receivable, net 4,926  $            5,190  $            

(In Thousands)
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Note 2. Notes and Accounts Receivable (Continued) 

The University participates in the Perkins federal revolving loan program.  The availability of funds for 
loans under the program is dependent on reimbursements to the pool from repayments on outstanding 
loans.  Funds advanced by the federal government of approximately $5.1 million and $5.0 million at 
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are ultimately refundable to the government and are classified as 
liabilities in the statement of financial position.  Outstanding loans canceled under the program result in a 
reduction of the funds available for loan and a decrease in the liability to the government. 
 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the following principal balances were past due under student loan programs: 
 

1-60 Days 60-90 Days 90+ Days Total
Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due

2015 445  $               30  $                 1,888  $            2,363  $            
2014 90  $                 65  $                 1,836  $            1,991  $            

(In Thousands)

 
 

Note 3. Pledges Receivable 

Unconditional promises are expected to be realized in the following periods: 
 

2015 2014

One year or less 4,091  $            4,370  $            
Between one year and five years 9,687                9,903                
More than five years 7,300                1,742                

21,078              16,015              
Less discount (2,322)               (807)                  
Less allowance (888)                  (598)                  

17,868  $          14,610  $          

(In Thousands)

 
 
The discount rate used for contributions receivable in 2015 and 2014, ranged from .11% to 5.01%. 
 
Pledges receivable are classified as follows: 
 

2015 2014

Permanently restricted 6,925  $            5,750  $            
Temporarily restricted 10,943              8,860                

17,868  $          14,610  $          

(In Thousands)
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Note 3. Pledges Receivable (Continued) 

Approximately 70% of the University’s pledges receivable at June 30, 2015 and 2014, were provided by 
six and eight contributors, respectively.  Included in net pledges receivable as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
are approximately $4.3 million and $5.4 million, respectively, in written promises to give from members of 
the Board of Trustees and Officers of the University. 
 

Note 4. Investments 

A summary of investments by type is as follows: 
 

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Money market 1,496  $            1,496  $            1,192  $            1,192  $            
Equity securities 46,765              59,085              40,875              54,441              
Equity mutual funds 38,611              57,969              36,826              58,391              
Fixed income securities 26,325              25,782              1,513                1,470                
Fixed income mutual funds 36,416              36,091              68,150              70,642              
Alternative investments 21,346              22,518              13,084              15,356              
Other investments 1,213                612                   1,197                690                   

172,172  $        203,553  $        162,837  $        202,182  $        

(In Thousands)

2015 2014

 
 
Income and net realized gains on investments for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

Income on endowment funds 1,593  $            3,889  $            5,482  $           
Other investment income 240                   -                    240                  
Net realized gains on endowment funds 1,989                5,014                7,003               
Net realized gains on other investment income 172                   (1)                      171                  

3,994  $            8,902  $            12,896  $         

Income and realized gains on investments –
net from operating activity 412  $               (1)  $                  411  $              

Income and realized gains on investments –
net from non-operating activities 3,582                8,903                12,485             

3,994  $            8,902  $            12,896  $         

(In Thousands)
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Note 4. Investments (Continued) 

Income and net realized gains on investments for the year ended June 30, 2014, are as follows: 
 

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

Income on endowment funds 1,473  $            3,311  $            4,784  $           
Other investment income 227                   -                    227                  
Net realized gains on endowment funds 2,654                5,015                7,669               
Net realized gains on other investment income 334                   (34)                    300                  

4,688  $            8,292  $            12,980  $         

Income and realized gains on investments –
net from operating activity 553  $               (31)  $                522  $              

Income and realized gains on investments –
net from non-operating activities 4,135                8,323                12,458             

4,688  $            8,292  $            12,980  $         

(In Thousands)

 
Investment income is net of management fees and expenses of approximately $765,000 and $807,000 
for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 
The following schedule summarizes changes in relationships between market value and cost of the 
University’s pooled investments (in thousands, except for market value per share): 
 

Market Net Market Value
Cost Value Gain Per Share

End of period 165,073  $        196,660  $        31,587  $         13.29$              
Beginning of period 155,849            194,648            38,799             13.51                
Net change in unrealized appreciation

for the period (7,212)              
Net realized gain for the period 6,576               
Net loss (636)  $             

Year Ended June 30, 2015

(In Thousands)
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Note 4. Investments (Continued) 

Market Net Market Value
Cost Value Gain Per Share

 
End of period 155,849  $        194,648  $        38,799  $         13.51$              
Beginning of period 135,910            159,831            23,921             12.30                
Net change in unrealized appreciation

for the period 14,878             
Net realized gain for the period 7,533               
Net gain 22,411  $         

Year Ended June 30, 2014

(In Thousands)

 
 
Earnings on the Fund include dividends and interest income.  For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 
2014, the earnings were $5.7 million and $4.8 million, respectively, or $0.38 per share, as computed on 
ending shares. 
 

Note 5. Endowment 

The University’s endowment consists of approximately 530 individual funds established for a variety of 
purposes.  These resources are recorded as permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and 
unrestricted net assets, as described below. 
 
Interpretation of Relevant Law 
 
On June 17, 2011, the State of Florida passed a version of the Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).  The effective date of the enacted version of UPMIFA in Florida (FL 
UPMIFA) is July 1, 2012.  Accordingly, the University was required to adopt the provisions of Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205-50 (formerly 
FASB Staff Position 117-1, Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an Enacted Version of the 
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, and Enhanced Disclosures for All Endowment 
Funds) on July 1, 2012.  
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Note 5. Endowment (Continued) 

The Board of Trustees has interpreted the Florida Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds 
Act (FL UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the 
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  As a result of this 
interpretation, the University classifies as permanently restricted net assets the original value of gifts 
donated to the permanent endowment, the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent 
endowment, and accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of 
the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.  The remaining 
portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets 
is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by 
the University in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by FL UPMIFA.  In 
accordance with FL UPMIFA, the University considers the following factors in making a determination to 
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: 
 

 The duration and preservation of the fund. 
 The purposes of the University and the donor-restricted endowment fund. 
 General economic conditions. 
 The possible effect of inflation and deflation. 
 The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments. 
 Other resources of the University. 
 The investment policies of the University. 

 
Funds functioning as endowments are University resources designated as endowment by the Board of 
Trustees and are invested in the endowment for long-term appreciation and current income.  However, 
these assets remain available and may be spent at the Board’s discretion unless donor-imposed 
restrictions exist on their use.  Certain contributions with donor-imposed restrictions have been 
designated as endowment by the Board of Trustees and are included in temporarily restricted net assets. 
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Note 5. Endowment (Continued) 

Endowment net assets were composed of the following as of June 30, 2015: 
 

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

True endowment funds
Accumulated earnings and

original contribution -$                 24,185  $         114,259  $       138,444  $       
Unrestricted support of

underwater endowments (2,052)              -                   -                   (2,052)              
Board-designated funds

Accumulated earnings and
original contribution 62,255             -                   -                   62,255             

Prior year distributions included
in pooled investments 953                  1,875               -                   2,828               

61,156  $         26,060  $         114,259  $       201,475  $       

(In Thousands)

 
Endowment net assets were composed of the following as of June 30, 2014: 
 

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

True endowment funds
Accumulated earnings and

original contribution -$                 26,316  $         109,501  $       135,817  $       
Unrestricted support of

underwater endowments (1,580)              -                   -                   (1,580)              
Board-designated funds

Accumulated earnings and
original contribution 63,489             -                   -                   63,489             

Prior year distributions included
in pooled investments 2,146               1,878               -                   4,024               

64,055  $         28,194  $         109,501  $       201,750  $       

(In Thousands)
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Note 5. Endowment (Continued) 

Changes to endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are as follows: 
 

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets,
at beginning of year 64,055  $         28,194  $         109,501  $       201,750  $       

Investment return:
Investment income 1,788               3,921               -                   5,709               
Realized gain 2,090               4,913               -                   7,003               
Unrealized gain (2,308)              (5,436)              -                   (7,744)              

Total investment return 1,570               3,398               -                   4,968               

Contributions -                   -                   4,202               4,202               

Distributed earnings (2,776)              (6,106)              -                   (8,882)              

Other changes:
Transfers to create board-designated

funds 247                  142                  -                   389                  
Increase in underwater funds (472)                 472                  -                   -                   
Net assets released from restrictions 241                  (241)                 -                   -                   
Other endowment activity (516)                 204                  556                  244                  
Reclassification of prior year
   distributions (1,193)              (3)                     -                   (1,196)              

Endowment net assets, at end of year 61,156  $         26,060  $         114,259  $       201,475  $       

(In Thousands)
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Note 5. Endowment (Continued) 

Changes to endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, are as follows: 
 

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets,
at beginning of year 53,604  $         18,703  $         94,241  $         166,548  $       

Investment return:
Investment income 1,632               3,344               -                   4,976               
Realized gain 2,654               5,015               -                   7,669               
Unrealized gain 5,122               10,280             -                   15,402             

Total investment return 9,408               18,639             -                   28,047             

Contributions -                   43                    15,005             15,048             

Distributed earnings (2,403)              (4,899)              -                   (7,302)              

Other changes:
Transfers to create board-designated

funds 100                  -                   -                   100                  
Recovery of underwater funds 1,663               (1,663)              -                   -                   
Net assets released from restrictions 2,224               (2,224)              -                   -                   
Other endowment activity (369)                 (121)                 255                  (235)                 
Reclassification of prior year
   distributions (172)                 (284)                 -                   (456)                 

Endowment net assets, at end of year 64,055  $         28,194  $         109,501  $       201,750  $       

(In Thousands)

 
 
Pledges and funds held in trust by others:  Endowment pledges and Funds Held in Trust by Others 
are not included in the above net asset balances.  Permanently restricted net assets attributable to 
endowment pledges as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 amount to $6,925,000 and $5,750,000, respectively, 
(see Note 3).  Permanently restricted net assets attributable to funds held in trust by others as of June 30, 
2015 and 2014 amount to $7,423,000 and $7,678,000, respectively (see Note 6). 
 
Funds with deficiencies: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or FL UPMIFA requires the University 
to retain as a fund of perpetual duration.  These deficiencies resulted from unfavorable market 
fluctuations and continued appropriation for certain programs that was deemed prudent by the Board of 
Trustees.  As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the amount of these deficiencies totaled approximately 
$2.1 million and $1.6 million, respectively. 
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Note 5. Endowment (Continued) 

Return objectives and risk parameters:  The University has adopted investment and spending policies 
for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by 
its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.  Under this 
policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is 
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of the S&P 500 and other benchmark 
indices while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. 
 
To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the University relies on a total return strategy in which 
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current 
yield (interest and dividends).  The University targets a diversified asset allocation that places greater 
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk 
constraints. 
 
The purpose of establishing a target spending rate for the University’s endowment assets is to achieve 
the spending stability necessary for the planning and budgeting activities funded from the University’s 
earnings.  In 2006, the Board resolved to maintain the endowment payout rate in a range of 3% to 6% of 
the University’s 12-quarter moving average market value.  In 2008, a target rate of 4.5% was identified. 
 

Note 6. Funds Held in Trust by Others 

Funds held in trust by others represent resources neither in the possession nor under the control of the 
institution, but held and administered by outside trustees, with the University deriving income from such 
funds.  The fair value of the University’s share of the assets is reflected in the statements of financial 
position and the income (including changes in the fair value of the assets) is recorded on the accrual 
basis.  Funds held in trust by others are recognized at the estimated fair value of the assets or the 
present value of the future cash flows when the irrevocable trust is established or the University is notified 
of its existence.  The funds held in trust by others at June 30, 2015 and 2014, amounted to approximately 
$9.6 million and $9.9 million, respectively.  Included in these balances are various Charitable Remainder 
Unitrusts and Annuity Trusts that amount to approximately $2.2 million and $2.3 million at June 30, 2015 
and 2014, respectively. 
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Note 7. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant, and equipment are summarized as follows: 
 

2015 2014

Land 8,559  $            8,165  $            
Land improvements, building and facilities 200,725            181,284            
Furniture and equipment 25,947              22,852              
Library books and collections 29,852              29,959              
Construction-in-progress 5,140                2,113                
Equipment under capital lease -                    1,812                

270,223            246,185            
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (117,993)           (110,738)           

152,230  $        135,447  $        

(In Thousands)

 
 
Amortization expense relating to the capitalized leases was approximately $62,000 and $82,000 for the 
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  Depreciation expense relating to constructed and 
purchased property and equipment was approximately $8.5 million and $8.3 million for the years ended 
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 
Interest capitalized during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, was approximately $38,000 and 
$2,000, respectively. 
 
Construction-in-progress at June 30, 2015 and 2014, relates primarily to the renovations of existing 
facilities and residence halls.  Estimated costs to complete these projects amount to approximately 
$32.5 million and $1.8 million, respectively.   
 
The University recognized approximately $1,635,000 and $1,531,000 for rental income on various 
facilities during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
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Note 8. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following: 
 

2015 2014

Bonds payable
Stetson University Volusia County Educational Facilities Authority 

Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds of 2015 – payable in
annual installments of $1,450,000 to $5,975,000 through 2045, plus
semiannual interest payments at a fixed rate of 5.00%, collateralized 
by the University's tuition revenues.  The Series 2015 bonds were issued
at a premium resulting in an effective interest rate of 4.08%. 96,420$            -$                  

Stetson University Volusia County Educational Facilities Authority 
Educational Facilities Revenue and Refunding Bonds of 2011 – final
payment of $9,044,000 plus interest at 3.11% during 2015, collateralized
by the University's tuition revenues. -                    9,044                

Stetson University Volusia County Educational Facilities Authority
Educational Facilities Revenue and Refunding Bonds of 2010 – final
payment of $26,385,000 plus interest at 3.57% during 2015, collateralized
by the University’s tuition revenues. -                    26,385              

Stetson University Volusia County Educational Facilities Authority 
Educational Facilities Revenue and Refunding Bonds of 2005 – final
payment of $15,055,000 plus interest at 4% during 2015, collateralized 
by the University’s tuition revenues. -                    15,055              

96,420              50,484              

Other notes payable 520                   3,580                
96,940              54,064              

Debt issuance costs (900)                  (392)                  
Unamortized premium on bonds payable 11,444              395                   

107,484  $        54,067  $          

(In Thousands)
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Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Required reductions of long-term debt for the fiscal years following 2015, are as follows: 
 
Year Ending Total Debt
June 30, Bonds Other Total Interest Service

2016 1,450  $           184  $              1,634  $           4,833  $           6,467  $           
2017 1,525               49                    1,574               4,759               6,333               
2018 1,600               50                    1,650               4,681               6,331               
2019 1,680               52                    1,732               4,599               6,331               
2020 1,765               53                    1,818               4,513               6,331               
Thereafter 88,400             132                  88,532             68,460             156,992           

96,420  $         520  $              96,940  $         91,845  $         188,785  $       

Principal

(In Thousands)

 
 
Issuance of new debt:  During fiscal year 2015, the University issued $96.4 million of Series 2015 
VCEFA Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds with a premium of approximately $11.5 million.  The net 
proceeds from the sale of the Bonds were used to pay the costs associated with the issuance of the 
Bonds and were used to refund all remaining maturities of the University’s 2005, 2010 and 2011 Bonds 
(VCEFA Series 2005, 2010 and 2011), and to refund the amount due on a $3,000,000 bank loan.  
Approximately $56.2 million of the proceeds were used to refund these obligations.  In addition, 
approximately $13.9 million of the proceeds were used to acquire student housing facilities from 
Collegiate Housing Foundation-DeLand, LLC (see Note 11).  The remaining proceeds of approximately 
$37.8 million were used to pay for bond issuance costs of $903,000 and will be used to pay for certain 
acquisitions, renovations, and improvements of academic and administrative facilities. 
 
Implementation of new accounting standard:  During fiscal year 2015, the University early adopted 
Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03 issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
which requires the presentation of debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability as a direct 
deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability.  For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
the University deducted unamortized debt issuance costs of $900,000 and $392,000, respectively, from 
the carrying amount of long-term debt on the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
The bonds contain various restrictions and other covenants typical of such agreements, with which the 
University is required to comply.  These include preserving existence as a tax-exempt not-for-profit 
organization, maintaining the property in good repair and working order, operating in compliance with 
laws and regulations, maintaining insurance coverage, submission of annual audited consolidated 
financial statements, and compliance with annual continuing disclosure requirements. 

Stetson Aquatic Center ECHO Grant 60



Stetson University, Inc. 
 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

27 

Note 9. Operating Leases 

The University has entered into various leases for automobiles and office equipment.  The leases are 
noncancelable operating leases which expire at various dates through 2020.  Following is a schedule of 
minimum future rental payments under noncancelable operating leases: 
 
Year Ending June 30, (In Thousands)

2016 217  $               
2017 169                   
2018 77                     
2019 27                     
2020 3                       
Minimum future rental payments 493  $               

 
 
Rent expense incurred under operating leases amounted to approximately $2,014,000 and $1,537,000 
for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 

Note 10. Retirement and Postretirement Benefits 

Retirement benefits are provided through defined contribution plans with the Teachers Insurance and 
Annuity Association – College Retirement Equities Fund, a national organization used to fund pension 
benefits for educational institutions.  All full-time employees with one year of service are eligible under the 
plan.  The University contributes 5% of base gross salary (as defined) after completion of one year of 
service (as defined) at the University and 10% of base gross salary after completion of two years of 
service, except for certain positions, as provided in the Plan document, that are immediately eligible to 
receive the University contributions.  Additionally, employees who were hired on or before June 30, 2008, 
receive supplemental University contributions in amounts based on the age of the eligible participants as 
of July 1, 2008.  All contributions are subject to certain limitations of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC).  
The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, amounted to approximately 
$4.9 million and $4.7 million, respectively. 
 
In addition, the University sponsors a defined benefit postretirement plan that provides medical and term-
life insurance benefits to eligible retirees.  During its May 2007 meeting, the Board of Trustees approved 
a resolution to reduce and eventually eliminate the postretirement defined benefit plan over a four-year 
period.  Employees retiring through June 30, 2008, who elected to receive postretirement health care 
benefits, are responsible to pay 40% of the premium.  Employees who retired between July 1, 2008 and 
June 30, 2011, who elected to receive postretirement health care benefits, are responsible to pay 50% of 
the premium.  Employees retiring after June 30, 2011, who elect to receive postretirement health care 
benefits, are responsible to pay 100% of the premium.  The effect of the 2007 amendment was a 
$12.3 million reduction in prior year service costs, which are being amortized over the average service to 
full eligibility as of the date of the plan amendment. 
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Note 10. Retirement and Postretirement Benefits (Continued) 

ASC 958-715, Not-for-Profit Entities:  Compensation-retirement benefits, requires recognition of the 
overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability in the 
accompanying statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year 
in which the changes occur in unrestricted net assets.  It also requires measurement of the funded status 
of a plan as of the date of the year-end statement of financial position.  The funded status of a defined 
benefit plan is measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the benefit obligation. 
 

2015 2014

Change in accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 7,952  $            8,265  $            
Service cost 119                   106                   
Interest cost 298                   344                   
Plan participants’ contributions 365                   395                   
Actuarial gain (1,104)               (212)                  
Benefit payments (810)                  (959)                  
Medicare subsidy 7                       13                     

Benefit obligation at end of year 6,827  $            7,952  $            

Change in Plan assets:
Fair value of Plan assets at beginning of year -$                  -$                  
University contributions 438                   551                   
Plan participants’ contributions 365                   395                   
Benefits paid (810)                  (959)                  
Medicare subsidy received 7                       13                     

Fair value of plan assets at end of year -$                  -$                  

(In Thousands)
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Note 10. Retirement and Postretirement Benefits (Continued) 

2015 2014

Funded status of the Plan:
Funded status at end of year (6,827)  $           (7,952)  $           
Unrecognized actuarial loss -                    -                    
Unrecognized prior service cost -                    -                    

Net accrued benefit liability (6,827)  $           (7,952)  $           

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position:
Postretirement benefit liability 6,827  $            7,952  $            

Net amount recognized 6,827  $            7,952  $            

Amounts recognized in the statement of activities:
Net loss 3,790  $            5,257  $            
Prior service credit -                    (32)                    

3,790  $            5,225  $            

Assumptions as of the end of the year:
Discount rate 4.01% 3.83%
Expected return on assets N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increases N/A N/A

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation (APBO):
Active employees 1,212  $            1,365  $            
Retirees 5,615                6,587                

Total APBO 6,827                7,952                
Unrecognized gain (loss) -                    -                    
Accrued postretirement benefit liability 6,827  $            7,952  $            

(In Thousands)

 
 

2015 2014

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost:
Service costs (benefits earned during the period) 119  $               106  $               
Interest cost (on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation) 298                   344                   
Amortization of net actuarial loss 363                   412                   
Amortization of prior service credit (32)                    (396)                  

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs 748  $               466  $               

(In Thousands)
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Note 10. Retirement and Postretirement Benefits (Continued) 

For measurement purposes, an 8.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care 
benefits was assumed for the year ended June 30, 2015.  The rate was assumed to decrease to 7.0% in 
the second year and by 0.25% to .50% per year until 2021 and remain at 5.0% thereafter.  Assumed 
health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans.  A 
one percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015: 
 

One One
Percentage Percentage

Point Point
Increase Decrease

Effect on total service and interest cost 47  $                 (41)  $                
Effect on end of year postretirement benefit obligation 775                   (653)                  

(In Thousands)

 
 
The University’s postretirement benefits are unfunded; therefore, cash contributions for postretirement 
benefits are equal to the benefit payments. 
 
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be 
paid: 
 
Year Ending June 30, (In Thousands)

2016 410  $               
2017 422                   
2018 423                   
2019 414                   
2020 441                   
2021-2025 2,215                

 
 
On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the 
Act), which introduces a Medicare prescription drug benefit, as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of 
retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to the 
Medicare benefit, was enacted.  On May 19, 2004, the FASB issued FSP No. 106-2, Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act 
of 2003, to discuss certain accounting and disclosure issues raised by the Act. FSP 106-2 addresses 
accounting for the federal subsidy for the sponsors of single employer defined benefit postretirement 
health care plans. 
 
The University has concluded that the prescription drug benefits provided under the postretirement plan 
are actuarially equivalent to the Medicare benefit as necessary to qualify for the subsidy.  The reported 
net periodic benefit costs of the postretirement plan in the accompanying statement of activities reflect the 
effects of the Act. 
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Note 11. Collegiate Housing Foundation – DeLand, LLC 

Previously, the University had an arrangement with Collegiate Housing Foundation – DeLand, LLC (CHF-
DeLand), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Collegiate Housing Foundation, in which students of the 
University utilize a 338-bed housing facility.  The University collected payments from students and 
remitted these funds to the trustee; however, there was no revenue and expense impact to the University.  
The facility was owned by CHF-DeLand, a separate 501(c)(3) entity, and financed through tax-exempt 
bonds issued by the Volusia County Industrial Development Authority and assumed by CHF-Deland.  The 
University did not pay nor was it responsible for the debt.  Additionally, no building lease existed between 
the University and CHF-DeLand.  The underlying property on which the facility is located was leased by 
the University to CHF-DeLand under a ground lease. 
 
On June 1, 2015, the University acquired the facilities owned by CHF-DeLand using proceeds from the 
Series 2015 VCEFA Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds.  Remaining funds held by the trustee after 
satisfying the debt and other obligations were transferred to the University as final payment on the ground 
lease.  These remaining funds amounted to $2,135,000 and are reported on the Statement of Activities in 
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises. 
 

Note 12. Related-Party Transactions 

During the 2015 and 2014 fiscal years, the University paid $1.8 million and $1.9 million, respectively, for 
insurance brokerage services and coverages provided by a firm for which a Trustee of the University is 
the chairman.  There were no outstanding payments owed to this firm as of June 30, 2015 and 2014.  
During fiscal year 2015, $122,000 was paid from proceeds of the Series 2015 VCEFA Educational 
Facilities Revenue Bonds for financial consulting services provided by a firm for which a Trustee is a 
Managing Director.  In addition, the University paid $9,000 for furniture and equipment purchased from a 
business owned by a Trustee of the University, and $4,000 for landscaping and related supplies from a 
business for which a Trustee owns a 35% interest. 
 

Note 13. Charles A. Dana Law Center Foundation, Inc. 

The University has recorded its interest in the net assets of the Charles A. Dana Law Center Foundation, 
Inc. (the Foundation) on the accompanying statements of financial position as investment in affiliated 
entity. 
 
The change in net assets of the Foundation for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, was ($12,000) 
and $401,000, respectively.  The University’s interest in the net assets for the Foundation as of June 30, 
2015 and 2014, amounted to approximately $3.9 million for each year. 
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Note 14. Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily Permanently
Restricted Restricted

June 30, 2015
Scholarships 12,667  $          53,230  $          
Programs 20,802              70,055              
Capital 3,636                -                    
Trusts and Annuities 2,536                65                     
Loans -                    2,552                
Pledges 10,948              6,925                

50,589  $          132,827  $        

June 30, 2014
Scholarships 13,525  $          50,733  $          
Programs 21,803              68,085              
Capital 3,317                -                    
Trusts and Annuities 2,631                165                   
Loans -                    2,552                
Pledges 8,859                5,751                

50,135  $          127,286  $        

(In Thousands)

 
 
Net assets released from restrictions in the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are 
comprised of approximately $9.2 million and $11.8 million due to satisfaction of program restrictions and 
scholarship awards, and approximately $2.3 million and $1.1 million due to acquisition of capital assets. 
 

Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Disclosures 

The University has established and documented processes and methodologies for determining the fair 
values of portfolio company investments on a recurring basis in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value 
Measurements.  Under ASC 820, a financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is 
based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  The three levels of 
valuation hierarchy established by ASC 820 are defined as follows: 
 

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets 
or liabilities in active markets. 

 
Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and 

liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. 

 
Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 

measurement. 
 
The University recognizes any transfers of assets or liabilities between Levels 1, 2 and 3 as occurring on 
the actual date of the transfer.  During fiscal years 2015 and 2014, there were no transfers into or out of 
Levels 1, 2, and 3. 
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Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Disclosures (Continued) 

A description of the valuation techniques applied to the University’s major categories of assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis follows: 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – The carrying amounts reported in the accompanying statements of 
financial position approximate their fair value, due to the short-term maturity of these instruments. 
 
Loans Receivable – Determination of the fair value of loans receivable, which are primarily federally 
sponsored student loans with U.S. government-mandated interest rates and repayment terms and subject 
to significant restrictions as to their transfer or disposition, could not be made without incurring excessive 
costs. 
 

Charitable Gift Annuities – The obligation for annuities is based on an actuarial calculation that considers 
the life expectancy of the annuitant and the expected rate of return to be earned on the annuitant’s gift.  
The rate of return assumed in this calculation for each of the annuities is 1.2%, which is representative of 
its fair value. 
 
Debt – The fair value of the VCEFA 2005 bond obligations payable is estimated based on quoted market 
prices for the same or similar issues. 
 
Estimated fair values of the University’s financial instruments at June 30, 2015 and 2014, are as follows: 
 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Description 2015 2015 2014 2014

Financial assets (liabilities)
Cash and cash equivalents 50,302  $          50,302  $          15,452  $          15,452  $          
Bonds payable (96,420)             (105,572)           (50,484)             (50,908)             

(In Thousands)
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Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Disclosures (Continued) 

The following table presents the fair values for assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of 
June 30, 2015: 
 

Level 1
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Level 2 Level 3

for Identical Significant Other Significant
Fair Assets or Observable Unobservable

Description Value Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Short-term investments
Fixed income mutual funds:

Multi-strategy 5,071  $           5,071  $           -$                   -$                 
Short-term investments total 5,071               5,071               -                     -                   
Funds held in trust by others 9,584               -                   -                     9,584               

Investments:
Money market funds 1,496               1,496               -                     -                   
Equity securities:

US large cap 15,818             15,818             -                     -                   
US mid/small cap 37,903             37,903             -                     -                   
International developed 4,870               4,870               -                     -                   
Unit Investment trusts 493                  493                  -                     -                   

Equity mutual funds:
US large cap 37,200             37,200             -                     -                   
US mid/small cap 554                  554                  -                     -                   
International developed 20,100             20,100             -                     -                   
Emerging markets 82                    82                    -                     -                   
Multi-strategy 33                    33                    -                     -                   

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Government 20,897             -                   20,897               -                   
Corporate 4,746               -                   4,746                 -                   
Global fixed 139                  -                   139                    -                   

Fixed income mutual funds:
U.S. Government 502                  502                  -                     -                   
Corporate 455                  455                  -                     -                   
Multi-strategy 10,968             10,968             -                     -                   
Global fixed 24,166             24,166             -                     -                   

Other investments 612                  89                    523                    -                   
Alternative investments:  (*)

Hedge Fund of Funds 10,173             
Private equity 7,619               
Emerging markets 4,727               

Investments total 203,553  $       154,729  $       26,305  $           -$                 

(*) In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value using the
 net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the 
fair value hierarchy.  The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation
 of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.

(In Thousands)
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Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Disclosures (Continued) 

The following table presents the fair values for assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of 
June 30, 2014: 
 

Level 1
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Level 2 Level 3

for Identical Significant Other Significant
Fair Assets or Observable Unobservable

Description Value Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Short-term investments
Fixed income mutual funds:

Multi-strategy 2,578  $           2,578  $           -$                   -$                 
Short-term investments total 2,578               2,578               -                     -                   
Funds held in trust by others 9,931               -                   -                     9,931               

Investments:
Money market funds 1,192               1,192               -                     -                   
Equity securities:

US large cap 13,953             13,953             -                     -                   
US mid/small cap 34,956             34,956             -                     -                   
International developed 4,722               4,722               -                     -                   
Unit Investment trusts 810                  810                  -                     -                   

Equity mutual funds:
US large cap 38,570             38,570             -                     -                   
US mid/small cap 612                  612                  -                     -                   
International developed 19,089             19,089             -                     -                   
Emerging markets 94                    94                    -                     -                   
Multi-strategy 26                    26                    -                     -                   

Fixed income securities:
U.S. Government 169                  -                   169                    -                   
Corporate 1,088               -                   1,088                 -                   
Global fixed 213                  -                   213                    -                   

Fixed income mutual funds:
U.S. Government 400                  400                  -                     -                   
Corporate 370                  370                  -                     -                   
Multi-strategy 57,734             57,734             -                     -                   
Global fixed 12,138             12,138             -                     -                   

Alternative investments: (*)
Multi-strategy -                   
Distressed 8,516               
Private equity 6,840               

Other investments (*) 690                  
Investments total 202,182  $       184,666  $       1,470  $             -$                 

(In Thousands)
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Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Disclosures (Continued) 

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the University’s Level 3 assets for 
the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014: 
 

2015 2014
(In Thousands) (In Thousands)

Balance, at beginning of year 9,931  $            9,306  $            
Purchases -                    -                    
Issuances -                    -                    
Actuarial and present value adjustments (347)                  625                   
Unrealized gains -                    -                    
Balance, at end of year 9,584  $            9,931  $            

 
 
The University’s beneficial interest in irrevocable split-interest agreements held or controlled by a third 
party are classified as Level 3 Funds Held in Trust by Others as the fair values are based on a 
combination of Level 2 inputs (interest rates and yield curves) and significant unobservable inputs (entity 
specific estimates of cash flows).  The fair values are estimated using the income approach and are 
measured at the present value of the future distributions the University expects to receive over the term of 
the agreements. 
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Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Disclosures (Continued) 

Fair Value      
(in thousands) 
June 30, 2015

Fair Value      
(in thousands) 
June 30, 2014

Redemption 
Frequency         

(if currently eligible)
Redemption 

Notice Period

Distressed funds (a) -                   8,516               quarterly 60 days

Hedge fund of funds (b) 10,173             -                   semi-annual 95 days

Private equity funds (c) 7,619               6,840               quarterly 60 days

Emerging markets funds (d) 4,727               -                   monthly 15 days

 
 

a. This class held a diversified portfolio of structured finance products tied to assets in the United 
States and Europe.  Primary holdings within the fund consisted of residential mortgage backed 
securities, asset backed securities, commercial mortgage backed securities, European Asset 
backed securities, and US agency mortgage backed securities.  The fair values of the 
investments in this class have been estimated using the net asset value per share. 

b. This class incorporates strategies with relative value, market neutral & low net equity, event 
driven, and distressed & credit securities.  The fair values of the investments in this class have 
been estimated using the net asset value per share. 

c. This class is open-end commingled fund designed to invest in high quality US real estate assets.  
The fund’s investment portfolio consists of over 175 properties across all real estate sectors of 
Hotels, Apartments, Retail, Office, and Industrial.  In addition to sector diversification, this fund’s 
investments are diversified across the United States with roughly half the assets in east coast 
properties and half in west coast properties.  The fair values of the investments in this class have 
been estimated using the net asset value per share. 

d. This class invests primarily in commons stocks from the universe of companies in the MSCI 
Emerging Markets Investable Market Index.  The fund also invests in ETFs, ETNs and depositary 
receipts to seek exposure to certain emerging markets.  The fund may also invest in preferred 
stocks, real estate investment trusts (REITs) and other investment companies.  The fund may 
also invest its assets in the U.S. or in other developed markets.  The fair values of the 
investments in this class have been estimated using the net asset value per share. 

The University has no unfunded commitments for alternative investments as of June 30, 2015 or 2014.  
 

Note 16. Subsequent Events 

ASC 855, subsequent events, establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events 
that occur after the balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial statements are issued.  ASC 
855 defines two types of subsequent events.  The effects of events or transactions that provide additional 
evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the 
process of preparing consolidated financial statements, are recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements.  The effects of events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of 
the balance sheet but arose after that date are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.  
Management of the University has reviewed subsequent events through October 7, 2015 (the date of the 
issuance of the accompanying consolidated financial statements). 
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Note 17. Contingencies 

The University is party to certain litigation as of June 30, 2015, which relates primarily to matters arising in 
the ordinary course of business.  Management of the University anticipates that the final resolution of 
these items will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the University. 
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Stetson University, Inc.

Supplementary Disaggregated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2015
(In Thousands)

Endowment and
Current Funds Loan Funds Similar Funds Plant Funds Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13,932  $           -$                   245  $               -$                 14,177  $           
Restricted cash 36,125               -                     -                    -                   36,125               
Short-term investments 5,071                 -                     -                    -                   5,071                 
Notes and account receivable – net 7,415                 5,486                 450                   -                   13,351               
Pledges receivable – net 10,943               -                     6,925                -                   17,868               
Inventories 242                    -                     -                    -                   242                    
Investments 405                    -                     203,088            60                    203,553             
Funds held in trust by others -                     -                     9,584                -                   9,584                 
Property, plant, and equipment, net 891                    -                     -                    151,339           152,230             
Other assets 3,172                 -                     -                    28                    3,200                 
Investment in affiliated entity -                     3,859                -                   3,859                 

Total assets 78,196  $           5,486  $             224,151  $        151,427  $       459,260  $         

Liabilities and net assets
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3,058  $             -$                   23  $                 1,919  $           5,000  $             
Accrued liabilities 7,356                 -                     -                    402                  7,758                 
Student deposits and other current liabilities 5,463                 -                     -                    22                    5,485                 
Postretirement benefits 6,827                 -                     -                    -                   6,827                 
Refundable government loan funds -                     5,148                 -                    -                   5,148                 
Annuities payable -                     -                     2,184                -                   2,184                 
Long-term debt -                     -                     -                    107,484           107,484             
Due to (from) other funds 34,150               (2,733)                3,237                (34,654)            -                     

Total liabilities 56,854               2,415                 5,444                75,173             139,886             

Net assets:
Unrestricted 3,366                 519                    59,455              72,618             135,958             
Temporarily restricted 17,976               -                     28,977              3,636               50,589               
Permanently restricted -                     2,552                 130,275            -                   132,827             

Total net assets 21,342               3,071                 218,707            76,254             319,374             
Total liabilities and net assets 78,196  $           5,486  $             224,151  $        151,427  $       459,260  $         
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on 
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Stetson University 
DeLand, Florida 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Stetson University, 
Inc. (the University), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the 
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and, the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 7, 2015. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist which have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Orlando, Florida 
October 7, 2015 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and 

State Project and on Internal Control Over Compliance 
in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.650, 

Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Stetson University 
DeLand, Florida 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
We have audited the compliance of Stetson University, Inc. (the University) with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, and the requirements 
described in the Department of Financial Services’ State Projects Compliance Supplement, that could 
have a direct and material effect on the University’s major federal programs and major state projects for 
the year ended June 30, 2015.  The University’s major federal programs and major state projects are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.   

 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs and state projects. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University’s major federal 
programs and state projects based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits 
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor 
General of the State of Florida.  Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the 
Auditor General of the State of Florida, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or major state project occurred.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the University’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the University’s 
major federal programs and major state projects. However, our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the University’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs and major 
state projects for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
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Other Matters 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with OMB Circular No. A-133 and which are described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2015-001 – 2015-004.  Our opinion on the major 
federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
The University’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  The University’s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs and 
major state projects to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state project and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program or state project on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program or state project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state 
project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose 
 

 
 
Orlando, Florida 
October 7, 2015 
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Stetson University 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

CFDA Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program Title Number Expenditures

U. S. Department of Education:
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:

Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 803,725  $       
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 4,369,938        
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) 84.007 264,431           
Federal Work-Study Program (FWS) 84.033 632,891           
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 49,900,739      
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher

Education Grant (TEACH) 84.379 35,630             
Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 56,007,354      

Research and Development Cluster:
Department of Commerce

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
Pass-through:

University of Georgia
Sea Grant Support 11.417 17,456             

Total Department of Commerce 17,456             

National Endowment for the Humanities
Direct:

Promotion of the Humanities - Professional Development 45.163 4,996               
Total National Endowment for the Humanities 4,996               

United States Department of Health and Human Services:
National Institutes of Health:

Pass-through:
Florida State University:

Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorders 93.173 33,467             
Total Department of Health and Human Services 33,467             

National Science Foundation:
Direct:

Biological Sciences 47.074 6,626               
Pass-through:

Villanova University 47.076 2,489               
Total National Science Foundation 9,115               

(Continued)
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Stetson University 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

Grantor Agency and Program Federal Awards
United States Department of the Interior

Direct:
State Wildlife Grants 15.634 26,064             

Direct:
Fish, Wildlife and Plant Conservation Resource Management 15.231 22,775             

Total United States Department of the Interior 48,839             
Total Research and Development Cluster 113,873           

United States Department of Education
Pass-through:

Florida Department of Education
   Race to the Top Centers of Excellence in Elementary
      Teacher Preparation 84.395A 349,117           

Total United States Department of Education 349,117           

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 56,470,344  $  

CSFA State
State Grantor/Project Title Number Expenditures

Florida Department of Education:
Florida Academic Top Scholars Awards 48.059 1,320  $           
Florida Academic Scholars Awards 48.059 967,788           
Florida Medallion Scholars Award Program 48.059 1,486,408        
Florida Gold Seal Vocational Scholars Award 48.059 4,466               
Florida Resident Access Grant 48.064 5,112,375        
Scholarships for Children and Spouses of Deceased or Disabled

Veterans and Service Members 48.055 34,328             
Florida Work Experience Project 48.053 20,401             
Florida Private Student Assistance Grant 48.054 617,522           

Total Florida Department of Education 8,244,608        

Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles:
Stetson University License Plate Project 76.060 19,757             

Total Expenditures of State Awards 8,264,365  $    

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards.
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Stetson University 
 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

Note 1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes grants, contracts and 
similar agreements entered into directly between Stetson University (the University) and agencies and 
departments of federal and state governments.  They also include all subawards to the University by 
nonfederal organizations pursuant to federal and state grants, contracts and similar agreements.  The 
information in these schedules are presented in accordance with the provisions of Office of Management 
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations 
and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.  Therefore, some amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements.  For FSEOG and FWS, the expenditures listed are only the federal share.  The 
University's twenty-five percent match was $88,144 and $332,870 for FSEOG and FWS, respectively.  
Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the University, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the 
University. 
 
Also, the grants reflect transactions for the June 30, 2015 fiscal year irrespective of the year of grant 
award and, accordingly, the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards do not include a full 
year’s activity for grants awarded or terminated on dates not coinciding with the aforementioned fiscal 
year. 
 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for Federal and State Award Expenditures 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Expenditures for student financial aid programs are recognized as incurred and include the federal share 
of students’ FSEOG program and FWS program earnings, Federal Pell grants, certain other federal 
financial aid grants for students, loan disbursements, and administrative cost allowances, where 
applicable. 
 
Expenditures for other federal awards of the University’s academic and other divisions are determined 
using the cost accounting principles and procedures set forth in OMB A-21, Cost Principles for 
Educational Institutions.  Under these cost principles, certain expenditures are not allowable or are limited 
as to reimbursement. 
 
Expenditures include indirect costs, related primarily to facilities operation and maintenance and general, 
divisional and departmental administrative services, which are allocated to direct cost objectives 
(including federal awards) based on negotiated formulas commonly referred to as facilities and 
administrative cost rates.  Facilities and administrative cost rates allocated to such awards for the year 
ended June 30, 2015, were based on fixed rates negotiated with the respective federal agency. 
 

Note 3. Subrecipient 

Certain program funds are passed-through the University to subrecipient organizations.  Of the total 
federal funds expensed by the University during its fiscal year, $134,628 represents disbursements to a 
subrecipient. 
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Stetson University 
 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

Note 4. Additional Required Information 

The federal student loan program listed below is administered directly by the University and balances and 
transactions relating to this program are included in the University’s basic financial statements.  Loans 
made during the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule. The balance of 
loans outstanding at June 30, 2015, consists of: 
 

Cluster/Program Title CFDA Number Amount Outstanding
Student Financial Assistance Cluster
   Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 $6,268,507
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Stetson University 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

I. Summary of Independent Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements: 

Type of auditor's report issued:      Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 

Material weakness(es) identified?           Yes      X   No 
 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses?          Yes      X    No 
 

Noncompliance material to financial statements  
noted?              Yes       X  No 
 

Federal Awards: 

Internal control over major programs or projects: 
Material weakness(es) identified?             Yes       X No 
 
Significant deficiencies identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses?            Yes       X No 

 
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for  

major programs or projects      Unmodified 
 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of 
Circular A-133            X    Yes        No 
 
Identification of major federal programs and state projects: 
        Name of Federal Program or 
CFDA / CSFA Number(s)     Cluster or State Project 
 
Various        Student Financial Assistance Cluster 
 
84.395A   Race to the Top Centers of Excellence  

     in Elementary Teacher Preparation 
 

48.064 Florida Resident Access Grant 
 
48.054 Florida Private Student Assistance Grant 
 
48.059 Florida Bright Futures Awards 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 

Federal type A and type B programs    $300,000 
 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
State type A and type B projects    $300,000 

 
Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?          X  Yes         No 
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Stetson University 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

State Awards: 
 

Internal control over major programs or projects: 
Material weakness(es) identified?             Yes       X No 
 
Significant deficiencies identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses?            Yes       X No 

 
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for  

major programs or projects      Unmodified 
 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Chapter 10.650, Rules of the  
Auditor General of the State of Florida         _    Yes       X No 
 

 
II.   Financial Statement Findings 
  

None reported. 
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Stetson University 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal and State Awards 

 
Audit Findings: 

 
2015-001:  TEACH Grant Eligibility 
U.S. Department of Education 
Student Financial Aid Cluster 
 
Criteria:  Under the TEACH Grant program, participating students are required to maintain a grade 
point average (GPA) of at least 3.25 for all classes taken in the most recently completed payment 
period.  
 
Condition:  A student did not have the required GPA during fiscal year 2015 and was therefore 
ineligible for the grant. 
 
Context:  10 students received TEACH grants during fiscal year 2015.  Due to the small size of the 
recipient group, all students were tested and one student did not maintain a GPA of 3.25 or above. 
 
Questioned Costs:  $3,760 
 

Cause:  Lack of back-up staff to ensure students’ eligibility when the assigned staff is unable to 
perform the task, and lack of supervisory review to ensure students’ eligibility. 
 

Effect:  The University improperly awarded a grant of $3,760 to a student, resulting in questioned 
costs of $3,760. 
 

Recommendation:  We recommend that the staff assigned to review eligibility for TEACH grants has 
a backup in the event he or she is unable to perform the task, as well as a documented supervisory 
review of students’ eligibility TEACH grants. 
 

Management’s Response:  This award has been canceled and $3760 awarded funds returned to the 
Federal TEACH program, within the 2014-2015 processing cycle.  One staff member is designated as 
the awarding officer.  No students are awarded until meeting, either in-person or by phone, with this 
staff member; the Associate Director has been designated as a backup for the TEACH awarding 
officer.  The procedure for awarding has been updated and copies shared with the entire staff.  The 
office master calendar has been updated to reflect that a review of recipient eligibility requirements 
will be executed prior to disbursement of funds for each term; each recipient’s GPA or standardized 
test scores will be reviewed before funds are disbursed.  The TEACH awarding officer will be 
provided training on the program requirements to reinforce these parameters. 
 
 
2015-002:  Verification 
U.S. Department of Education 
Student Financial Aid Cluster 
 
Criteria:  The U.S. Department of Education requires educational institutions to have policies and 
procedures in place to verify information in student financial aid applications. 
 
Condition:  The files of certain students whose information was selected for the verification process 
were updated with incorrect information. 
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Stetson University 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

Context:  We selected 40 students who had been selected by the University for verification.  For four 
of the selected students, the verification process resulted in certain information from student or parent 
tax returns being incorrectly updated. 
 
Questioned Costs:  None 
 

Cause:  The staff performing the verification was inadequately trained to identify the correct 
information. 
 

Effect:  Students’ records were incorrectly updated, resulting in inaccurate financial information. 
 

Recommendation:  We recommend that staff be trained adequately to identify the appropriate tax 
information during the verification process. 
 

Management’s Response:  All of these verifications were completed by staff members who are no 
longer employed in the office.  All verifications are currently completed by a staff member who is a 
certified tax preparer.  The verifying officer will undergo additional training regarding the federal 
verification and federal methodology process to ensure that these types of errors do not occur again. 
 
2015-003:  Loan Notification 
U.S. Department of Education 
Student Financial Aid Cluster 
 
Criteria:  Under the loan programs, institutions must notify the student, or parent, in writing, of the 
date and amount of the disbursement, the right to cancel all or a portion of the loan, the procedure 
and time by which the student or parent must notify the institution of cancellation.  The institution must 
make this notification no earlier than 30 days before, and no later than 30 days after disbursement of 
the loan. 
 
Condition:  The University notified certain students 31 days after the loan disbursement, and was 
unable to provide documentation of notification of certain other students. 
 
Context:  We selected 36 students to test that loan notifications were made within the appropriate 
period.  Of those selected students, one was notified 31 days after disbursement, and the University 
was unable to provide evidence of timely notification for five students. 
 
Questioned Costs:  None 
 

Cause:  Lack of review to ensure notifications are made timely, and that the appropriate electronic 
and/or paper documentation was not retained to support timely notification. 
 

Effect:  Students were not notified timely or may not have been notified at all of their right to decline a 
loan disbursement. 
 

Recommendation:  We recommend management implement a review process to ensure that 
borrowers are notified of their right to decline loan funds within the required timeframe. 
 

Management’s Response:  We identified issues with the code for selecting records for disbursement 
notifications; steps have been taken to address the selection criteria.  Additionally, a staff member 
has added the step to daily/weekly checklist of items to be completed.  Policies and procedures are 
updated to reflect that disbursements should only be run once per day and notices generated 
immediately following. 
 

Stetson Aquatic Center ECHO Grant 86



Stetson University 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

2015-004:  Federal Student Aid Credit Balances 
U.S. Department of Education 
Student Financial Aid Cluster 
 
Criteria:  Federal regulations state that a Federal Student Aid (FSA) credit balance occurs whenever 
the school credits FSA program funds to a student’s account and the total amount of those FSA funds 
exceeds the student’s allowable charges.  Regulations require that schools pay a student his or her 
FSA credit balance within either 14 calendar days of the date the credit balance occurred on his or 
her account or 14 days after the first day of classes of the payment period. 
 
Condition:  The University did not refund certain students with credit balances within the required 14 
days. 
 
Context:  We selected 49 students, who received various federal awards, noting one with a credit 
balance who was refunded 18 days after the credit was created on his account, and was thus outside 
the required 14 days. 
 
Questioned Costs:  None 
 

Cause:  Lack of review to ensure student credits are returned within 14 days. 
 

Effect: Late disbursement of a credit to a student. 
 

Recommendation:  We recommend management implement a review process to ensure that all 
necessary refunds to students are remitted no later than 14 days after the credit balance is put on the 
students account. 
 

Management’s Response: This student was flagged on refund lists generated on 1/23/15, 1/26/15, 
2/2/15, all for review by a staff member, who is no longer employed in the office, and who finally 
cleared it for refunding on 2/9/15.  Policy and procedure for reviewing refund reports have been 
updated and shared with staff providing parameters for completion within the regulatory requirements.  
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Stetson University 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

2014-001:  Student status (enrollment) changes 
U.S. Department of Education 
Student Financial Aid Cluster 
 
Criteria:  Under the Pell grant and loan programs, institutions must complete and return within 30 
days the Enrollment Reporting roster file [formerly the Student Status Confirmation Report (SSCR)] 
placed in their Student Aid Internet Gateway (SAIG) (OMB No. 1845-0002) mailboxes sent by ED via 
NSLDS (OMB No. 1845-0035).  The institution determines how often it receives the Enrollment 
Reporting roster file with the default set at every 2 months, but the minimum is twice a year.  Once 
received, the institution must update for changes in student status, report the date the enrollment 
status was effective, enter the new anticipated completion date, and submit the changes 
electronically through the batch method or the NSLDS website. Institutions are responsible for timely 
reporting, whether they report directly or via a third-party servicer.   
 
Condition:  Student status changes were not reported timely to the National Student Loan Data 
System (NSLDS). 
 
Context:  We selected 40 students to evaluate status changes.  Out of the 40 students selected, we 
noted one student whose status change was not reported within the required time frame. 
 
Questioned Costs:  None 
 

Cause:  The University utilizes a third-party servicer to facilitate the process of reporting student 
status changes.  The error appears to have been caused by a system issue at the third-party servicer, 
however, the University does not have a process in place to ensure timely reporting has been 
completed by the third-party servicer. 
 

Effect:  Noncompliance with the recommendation cited above. 
 

Recommendation:  We recommend that the University develop a process to ensure that timely 
reporting of student status changes has been performed by its third-party servicer. 
 

Management’s Response:  Stetson University will implement, through the Registrar’s Office, a 
monthly sample check on NSLDS of 1% of the students submitted on the SSCR roster through 
Clearinghouse to ensure the reported enrollment was processed as submitted.  This will require a 
member of the Registrar’s Office to obtain access to view enrollment on the NSLDS site 
 

Corrective Action Taken:  Corrective action was not taken during fiscal year 2015.  McGladrey 
identified no findings related to this requirement for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
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Stetson University
Unaudited Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents 39,487$                  
Short-term Investment 5,090                      
Notes and accounts receivable - net 13,896                    
Pledges receivable - net 20,586                    
Inventories 248                         
Investments 196,764                  
Funds held in trust by others 9,195                      
Property, plant and equipment (net) 158,976                  
Other assets 884                         
Investment in Affiliate 3,859                      

TOTAL ASSETS 448,985$                

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,230$                    
Accrued liabilities 6,300                      
Student deposits and other current liabilities 1,535                      
Postretirement benefits 6,827                      
Refundable government loan funds 5,148                      
Annuities payable 2,089                      
Long-term debt 107,521                  

Total liabilities 131,650                  

Net Assets:
Total net assets 317,335                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 448,985$                

Liabilities and Net Assets
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Stetson University
Unaudited Statement of Activities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Period End
December 31, 2015

Operating Revenues
Tuition and fees (net of scholarships and fellowships) 44,899$                        
Contributions 3,023                            
Income and realized gains on investments - net 243                               
Endowment income used in operations 4,637                            
Sales of educational services 1,734                            
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 12,878                          
Governmental grants 619                               
Other 1,379                            
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (42)                                

Total revenues, gains and
other support 69,370                          

Operating Expenses
Educational and General:

Instruction 20,536                          
Research 105                               
Public service 647                               
Academic support 6,251                            
Student services 11,768                          
Institutional support 9,704                            
Operation and maintenance of plant 12,488                          

Total educational and general
expenses 61,499                          

Auxiliary enterprises 5,987                            

Total expenses 67,486                          

Change in net assets from operations 1,884                            

Non-operating Activities

Contributions 8,096                            
Funds held in trust by others (279)                              

Income and realized gains on investments - net 4,129                            

Endowment income used in operations (4,637)                           

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (11,099)                         

Change in value of split-interest agreements (126)                              

Postretirement changes other than net periodic cost -                                  

Other (7)                                  

Increase in investment in affiliated entity -                                  

Change in net assets from non-operating activities (3,923)                           
Change in Net Assets (2,039)                           

Net Assets at Beginning of Period/Year 319,374                        

Net Assets at End of Period/Year 317,335$                      
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2015/2016 ECHO Grants-in-Aid Standard & Exceptional Grant Application 
 

 

 

SECTION 5: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
NOT FOR PROFIT ONLY:  

1.) Attach official IRS letter granting Not-for-Profit 501(c)(3) status in Florida. 
See attached IRS letter to Stetson University, Inc., dated May 2006. 

2.) Attach the organization’s most recent Uniform Business Report (also referred to as an Annual Report) 
filed with the State of Florida, Divisions of Corporations. 
See attached Stetson University’s Florida Division of Corporations Uniform Business Report, 2016. 
 

UNRESTRICTIVE OWNERSHIP OR UNDISTURBED USE OF FACILITY: 
1.) Attach unrestricted ownership/undisturbed use documentation unless the project is an acquisition of 

real property.  Insert a letter of intent to sell from the owner for Acquisition Projects. 
See warranty deed, mortgage, and letter from mortgage holder consenting to project. 

 
You may provide further information to demonstrate how your program will benefit the citizens of Volusia 
County.   Do not include any information already required in Sections 1 – 4. 
 
Appendix: 
 

 County Council Resolution 2014-59 

 County Council Resolution 2014-60 

 Access Easement 

 Marketing Brochure presented to Volusia County Legislative Delegation in 2014 

 Bartram Gardens and Trail Concept Paper 

 Conceptual Site Plan 

 Boundary survey 

 Wetlands and Tree Survey 

 Stetson Magazine Article 
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421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278 
DELAND,  FL  32723

Current Principal  Place of Business:

Current Mailing Address:

421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278 
DELAND,  FL  32723  

Entity Name: STETSON UNIVERSITY, INC.

DOCUMENT# N27521

FEI Number: 59-0624416 Certificate of Status Desired:

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent:

HUTH, FRANK RJR.  
421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278, ELIZABETH HALL, ROOM 103 
DELAND, FL  32723  US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date

Officer/Director Detail :

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under 
oath; that I am an officer or director of the corporation or the receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 617, Florida Statutes; and that my name appears 
above, or on an attachment with all other like empowered.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Signing Officer/Director Detail Date

FILED
Jan 25, 2016

Secretary of State
CC6588631332

FRANK HUTH EVP AND CFO 01/25/2016

 2016  FLORIDA NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT

Yes

 

Title P

Name LIBBY, WENDY B 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND 
BOULEVARD, UNIT 8258   

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title VP

Name HUTH, FRANK RJR. 

Address 421 N. WOODLAND BLVD., UNIT 8278   

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title ASSOCIATE VICE PRESIDENT FOR 
FINANCE

Name MARGHEIM, JEFFREY  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name BREAKIRON-EVANS, MAUREEN  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title D

Name PRATS, LUIS  

Address % STETSON UNIV., 421 N. 
WOODLAND BLVD.   

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title PROVOST

Name PAUL, ELIZABETH  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name ALEXANDER, STEVEN  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name BROWN, CYNTHIA  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Continues on page 2
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Title DIRECTOR

Name BRUIN, C SCOTT 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name COOPER, JOE R 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name FOREMAN, BONNIE  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name JENKINS, TONY  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name JOLLAY, GEOFFREY  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name LOPEZ, BRENDA H 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name MAGIDSON, JOSHUA  ESQ.

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name MORRIS, SUSAN  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name PAUL, HARLAN  ESQ.

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name REDDICK, GARY D 

Officer/Director Detail Continued :

Title DIRECTOR

Name BROWN, J HYATT 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name CACCIATORE, SAMMY  JR.

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name FARMER, NANCY  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name GEORGE, RICHARD C 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name JOHNSON, BETTY D 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name LANE, L PATRICK 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name LYNN, CHRISTINE E 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name MCGRAW, LEE  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name NOVAK, JANE  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name POCICA, ROBERT  
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Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name TEMPLETON, TROY  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name WOLFE, CHARLES A 

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name BOOTH, WILLIAM R 

Address 421 N. WOODLAND BLVD.  UNIT 8278   

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name HENDERSON, GLEN  

Address 421 N. WOODLAND BLVD.  UNIT 8278   

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name RINKER, DAVID B PHD

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name WALDA, JOHN  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name ZIESENHEIM, KENNETH  

Address 421 NORTH WOODLAND BOULEVARD
UNIT 8278    

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name CHANG, YVONNE  

Address 421 N. WOODLAND BLVD.  UNIT 8278   

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723

Title DIRECTOR

Name KENT, LAUREL  

Address 421 N. WOODLAND BLVD.  UNIT 8278   

City-State-Zip: DELAND  FL  32723
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2015/2016 ECHO Grants-in-Aid Standard & Exceptional Grant Application 
 

 

ATTACHMENT CHECKLIST:  Please check your application before sending. 
 
The following items/documentation must be included with your application or your application will not be 
scored.  All match sources must be secured and proof thereof submitted by the Application Deadline in the 
Application Review Calendar found at http://www.volusia.org/services/community-services/parks-recreation-
and-culture/echo/current.stml. 
 
APPLICANT 
⌧ ECHO Application, completed and signed 
⌧Proof of ownership or copy of lease 
⌧ Mission Statement for Organization 
⌧ Form 1.6 – Certification of Information and Compliance, completed and signed 
⌧Street Locator Map 
⌧ Site Plan 
⌧ Preliminary & Schematic Drawings 
⎕ Design & Development Documents 
⎕ Construction Documents 
⌧Official Documentation of Match  
⌧Business Plan 
⌧Feasibility Study 
⌧Marketing Plan 
⌧Financial Audit Documents (listed in the Application Guide page----) 
⌧ Not-for-Profits only: IRS Status Letter classifying Organization as a 501(c) (3) 
⌧Restrictive Covenants or Statement agreeing to follow this requirement 
⌧ Other 

 
 
ECHO STAFF 
⎕ ECHO Application, completed and signed 
⎕ Proof of ownership or copy of lease 
⎕ Mission Statement for Organization 
⎕ Form 1.6 – Certification of Information and Compliance, completed and signed 
⎕ Street Locator Map 
⎕ Site Plan 
⎕ Preliminary & Schematic Drawings 
⎕ Design & Development Documents 
⎕ Construction Documents 
⎕ Official Documentation of Match  
⎕ Business Plan 
⎕ Feasibility Study 
⎕ Marketing Plan 
⎕ Financial Audit Documents (listed in the Application Guide page----) 
⎕ Not-for-Profits only: IRS Status Letter classifying Organization as a 501(c) (3) 
⎕ Restrictive Covenants or Statement agreeing to follow this requirement 
⎕ Other 

 

Stetson Aquatic Center ECHO Grant

http://www.volusia.org/services/community-services/parks-recreation-and-culture/echo/current.stml
http://www.volusia.org/services/community-services/parks-recreation-and-culture/echo/current.stml
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*Stetson is under contract for design of the site which does not
coincide with the ECHO grant cycle. See explanation on page 13.
We will seek County Council approval of the revised master site plan
in summer 2016. Construction will commence Fall 2016 and be
substantially complete by Spring 2018. We ask for review of the project
now, so the Council can make the award subject to County Council
approvals of the revised master site plan required later this year.   
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Resolution 2014-59 

 

Resolution 2014-60 

 

Access Easement 

 

Marketing Brochure 

 

Bartram Gardens Canoe Trail 

 

Conceptual Site Plan 

 

Boundary Survey 

 

Topographic and Tree Survey (depicts wetlands delineation) 

 

Stetson Magazine Article, Winter 2015 
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RESOLUTION 2014 -59 

RESOLUTION VACATING AND ABANDONING A CERTAIN PORTION
OF SUBDIVISION PLAT IN VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Stetson University, Inc. presented to the County Council a sworn Petition in writing wherein
and whereby they seek to have vacated portions of the plat of Buena Vista, including certain streets, hereinafter
described, which said plat is on file in the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Volusia County, Florida, and
to have the property hereinafter described and encompassed in said plat, including streets, returned to acreage
for the purpose of taxation; and

WHEREAS, the County Council is of the opinion that said Petition is in proper form and that all things
have been done by the said petitioners as conditions precedent to the consideration of action upon said Petition,
and

WHEREAS, this Council is of the opinion that the prayer of said Petition should be granted, NOW
THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, IN REGULAR
MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED IN THE THOMAS C. KELLY ADMINISTRATION CENTER, COUNTY COUNCIL
CHAMBERS, IN THE CITY OF DELAND, FLORIDA, THIS 1ST DAY OF MAY, A.D. 2014, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION I: That portion of the subdivision plat described as follows, to-wit:

LOTS 6 TO 19, INCLUSIVE; LOTS 83 THROUGH 101, INCLUSIVE, LOTS 120 THROUGH 128,
INCLUSIVE, AND THAT PART OF LOTS 102 AND 116 THROUGH 119, INCLUSIVE, LYING EAST
OF LINE 250 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP
17 SOUTH, RANGE 29 EAST, BUENA VISTA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF,
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 11, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF VOLUSIA
COUNTY, FLORIDA.

TOGETHER WITH THAT PORTION OF PLATTED MATANZAS STREET LYING BETWEEN LOTS
12 AND 13 AND LOTS 90 AND 91,

AND

THAT PORTION OF PLATTED LAKE SHORE DRIVE LYING BETWEEN LOTS 95 THROUGH 101
AND LOTS 122 THROUGH 128,

AND

THAT PORTION OF PLATTED ALHAMBRA STREET LYING BETWEEN LOT 121 AND LOT
122, AND LYING BETWEEN LOT 102 AND LOT 95 LYING EAST OF A LINE 250 FEET EAST
OF AND PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 17 SOUTH, RANGE
29 EAST, ALL IN BUENA VISTA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF, AS
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 11, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF VOLUSIA
COUNTY, FLORIDA.

be and the same, including streets, is hereby vacated, and the property covered by said plat, be and the same is
hereby returned to acreage as it existed prior to the filing of said plat, for the purpose of taxation.

SECTION II: The vacation provided in Section I above is contingent upon the recordation, no later than
1 year after the adoption of this resolution on the Public Records of Volusia County, 1) a perpetual and
permanent easement granted by Stetson University, Inc. to the County of Volusia, in a form acceptable by the
County, for the purpose of providing public access to Lake Beresford including improvements to facilitate public

Resolution 2014-59



Instrument# 2014-086374 # 2
Book: 6989
Page: 1261

access and recreational enjoyment of Lake Beresford by non-motorized vessel; 2) a perpetual and permanent
easement granted by Stetson University, Inc. to Duke Energy, Inc. in a form acceptable by Duke Energy for utility
purposes on lands in the vacated area.

Failure to meet these conditions within 1 year of adoption of this resolution shall serve to automatically
repeal this resolution and the vacation in Section I above shall be null and void ab initio.

SECTION III: The Clerk of the Circuit Court is hereby directed to affix upon the face of the plat of the
subdivision appropriate notice that the aforementioned portion of plat has been vacated.

SECTION IV: This Resolution shall become effective when filed in the office of the Clerk of the Circuit
Court and duly recorded in the Public Records of Volusia County, Florida.

DONE AND ORDERED IN OPEN MEETING:

JAROVV\MMABAND\BuenaVistaStetsonUniv\RES.docx

COUNTY COUNCIL
VOLUSIA COUN , FLORIDA

, /K,

• Asr,AIAPP"

/4
/••"ON P. DAVIS

County Chair
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Best Available Image

The Beacon
PUBLISHED WEEKLY

State of Florida
COUNTY OF VOLUSIA SS

Before the undersigned authority personally ap-
peared Barb Shepherd____, who on oath
says that he/she is the Legal Advertising Representative
of The Beacon, a weekly newspaper published at
__DeLand_______, in Volusia 
County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement,
being a 
__Notice Requesting Vacation of All or Portions of Plat__
in the matter of 
 Buena Vista Subdivision 
in the __Circuit __Court, was published in said
newspaper, in the issue(s) of 
  April 17 & 24, 2014 
Athant further says that the said Beacon is a

newspaper published at DeLand, in said Volusia County,
Florida, and that the said newspaper has heretofore
been continuously published in said Volusia
County, Florida, each week and has been entered as
second-class mail matter at the post office in DeLand
in said Volusia County, Florida, for a period
of one year preceding the first publication of the attached
copy of advertisement; and athant further says that he/
she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or
corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund
for the purpose of securing this advertisement for
publication in the said newspaper.

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me
this_24th____day of ____April___, 2014, by
__Barb Shepherd , who is personally
known to me and who did take an oath.

P E: LODE W. ROBINSON
)I ri son # EE 002795

Expires October 19, 2014
ioweri Thru Troy Foin Ins:gam:6,800-385-7019

1=5.trisurialimerwirrailirmathowordso*.r.motam*:4

(SEAL)

ItcniattpiciiiernmetvAcAnotit
OF ALL OR PORTIONS OF PLAT OF

BUENA VISTA SUBOIVISION
TO WHOM ITMAY CONCERN:
Piesuotakencttethostegron univet-

ay, ltheuetdaycfMay.2014,3t
the hourof 205 dolock P.M. in the
Gonna Meiling Room, Thomas C.
Administration Center, 123 West Indleni
Avenue, Deland, Flans, petition the
CountyCouncioNduslaCeuntt Florid&
to vacate a or that portion Otte PIM*
Buenaviste, is regorged in Liao:look It
Page 11,71r, the Office bite Clerk of the
Circuit Court; DeLaid,Florlds, and more
particularly described as follows:

THROUGH 101, INCLUSIVE, LOTS 1
LOTS8 TO 19, INCLUSIVE; LOTTI

TIROUGH128,INCLUSNEAND
PARTOFLOTS102AND118THROUGH
119, INCLUSIVE, LYING EASTOF LINE
260 FEET EAST OF AND PAPAL].
TO TIE VEST LINE OF SECTION 24,
TOWNSHIP 17 SOUTH, RANGE
EAST, BUENA VISTA, ACCORDI
TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF,
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PA
11, 00 TIE PUBLIC RECORDS
ViOWSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA.
TOGETHER WITH THAT PORTION

OF FUMES/MATANZAS STREET LY-
ING BETWEEN LOTS 12 AND 13 AND
LOTS 90 AND 91,
AND
'THAT PORTION OF PLATTED LAKE

SHOFtEDRIVELYINOBETWEENLOT$
96 THROUGH 101 AtEr LOTS 122
THROUGH 128,
AND
THAT PORTION OF PLATTED AL-

HAMBRA STREET LYING BE1MEal
LOT 121 AND LOT 122, AND LY
BETWIEENLOTIO2ANDLOT95LYIN3
EAST OF A LINE 250 FEET EAST OF
AND.PARALLEL.TOTHESMESTUNECIF
SECTION 24; TOWNSHIP 1790111K
RANGE29EAl3T,ALLINBUENAVISTA,
ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PL4T
BOOK 11, RAGE 11, OF THE P
RECORDS OF VOLUSIA COUNT
FLORIDA.

Petitioner asserts tallboy are the fa
simple We, arta of ail or that portion bf
said plat sought to be vacated.

Persons interested may appear arid
be heard at the time and place siva
speckled.

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS
WRH DISABILMES ACT (TITLE II)

In accordtace with the
of Title liof theAmericans with Disabi
Actof 1990CADA),theCountyofVolusia
-Mount?) will not discrainate against
quaffed allviduals with diabase' On
the basis of disability In its servica,
programs, or activities. Anyone wio
requires an auditory aid or service dr
effecthrecommunicalon,ora
of policies or procedures to pw0a In
a program, service, or activity of
should contact the office of the CouMs

• 

flCoordtidso1MrGeorgeBalGeorge
at (388) 248-1780 as soon as possible
but no later than 2 business days before
the scheduled event or meeting. This
paragraph shallikewise apply to written
requests. by a physically handicapped
person needingespecialaccommodetbn
to attend a public meeting in acoDrdarce
with section 288.28, Florida Statutes.
A copy of the Counts Notice WIC*

the Americana with DisatdiNes Act (flee
II) can be obtained at http:Wwww.volusia.
orgrada or requested from the County's
ADA Title II Coordinator at the telephcine
number Med above.

F. Robert Huth, Jr
Vice President of Business and CFO
Office of Finance
Stetson University
421 N. Woodand Blvd.
Deland, FL 32723

April 17 & 24, 2014



Instrument# 2014-086374 # 5
Book: 6989
Page: 1264
Diane N. ktousek
Volusia County, Clerk of Court

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF VOLUSIA

I, JAMES T. DINNEEN, County Manager and Clerk to the County Council of

Volusia County, Florida, do hereby certify that the attached and foregoing RESOLUTION

2014-59 is the ORIGINAL Resolution as adopted by the County Council of Volusia County,

Florida, at its meeting held on May 1,2014.

WITNESS my hand and official seal at DeLand, Volusia County, Florida, this

13th day of May, A.D. 2014.

.47.04,vt.

AIWA
r" RMA IrDEPUTY CLERK

JAMES T. DINNEEN 
COUNTY MANAGER AND CLERK TO THE
COUNTY COUNCIL OF VOLUSIA COUNTY,
FLORIDA
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1 RESOLUTION 2014-60
2
3 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF VOLUSIA
4 COUNTY, FLORIDA, APPROVING PUD-14-037 AND
5 AMENDING 'THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF VOLUM
6 COUNTY, FLORIDA, BY CHANGING THE ZONING
7 CLASSIFICATION OF CERTAIN HEREIN DESCRIBED
8 PROPERTY FROM THE R-3. R-4 and B-7 
9 CLASSIFICATIONS TO THE BPUD CLASSIFICATION;
10 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
11

12 WHEREAS, the application of  STETSON UNIVERSITY hereinafter, "Applicant,* for

13 rezoning was heard by and before the Volusia County Council, Volusia County, Florida, on

14 May 1, 2014. Based upon the verified application and other supporting documents, maps,

15 charts, overlays, other evidence and instruments; the advice, report, and recommendations

16 of the Growth and Resource Management Department, Legal Department, and other

17 Departments and agencies of Volusia County; and the testimony adduced and evidence

18 received at the Public Hearing on this application by the Planning and Land Development

19 Regulation Commission on April 8, 2014, and otherwise being fully advised, the Volusia

20 Comity Council does hereby find and determine as follows:

21
[Renabulercofypagetintentiobally left blank

Page 1 of 18
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1 A. That the application of STETSON UNIVERSITY was duly and properly filed

2 herein on (Date), as required by law.

B. That the Applicant has applied for a change of zoning from the R-3 R-4 and

4 B-7 to Business Planned Unit Development (BPUD) for the parcel described in Exhibit

5 11A" to the Development Agreement for PUD-14-037. 

6 C. That all fees and costs that are by law, regulation, or ordinance required to be

7 borne and paid by the applicant have been paid.

8 D. That the applicant is the Owner or authorized representative of the Owner of

9 a 9.91 acre parcel of land, which is situated in Volusia County. This parcel of land is

10 described more particularly in the property survey and legal description, a true copy of

11 which is attached as Exhibit "A" to the Development Agreement for PUD-14-037. 

12 E. That the Applicant has held a pm-application meeting as required by Chapter

13 72, County Code of Ordinances, as amended.

14 F. That the Applicant has complied with the "Due Public Notice" requirements of

15 Chapter 72, County Code of Ordinances, as amended.

16 G. That the said rezoning to BPUD is consistent with both the Volusia County

17 Comprehensive Plan and the intent and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance of Volusia

18 County, Florida ("zoning code"), as codified in article II of Chapter 72, Code of Ordinances,

19 and does promote the public health, safety, morals, general welfare and orderly growth of

20 the area affected by the rezoning request.

21 H. That the owner of the property, STETSON UNIVERSITY, agrees with the

22 provisions of the Development Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit "1."

23

Page 2 of 18
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1 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF VOLUSIA

2 COUNTY, FLORIDA, IN AN OPEN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED IN THE THOMAS C.

3 KELLY COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING ROOM,

4 DELAND, FLORIDA, THIS 1st DAY OF MAY, AD., 2014, AS FOLLOWS:

5 A. That the Application of STETSON UNIVERSITY for the rezoning of the

6 subject parcel is hereby granted.

7 B. That the zoning classification of the abject parcel described in Exhibit "A" to

8 the Development Agreement is hereby amended from the R-3 R4 and B-7 classification to

9 BPUD as described in zoning code.

10 C. That the Official Zoning Map of Volusia County is hereby amended to show

11 the rezoning of said parcel to BPUD.

12 D. With respect to any conflict between the zoning code and this Resolution or

13 the attached Agreement, the provisions of this Resolution and Development Agreement

14 shall govern. The zoning code shall govern with respect to any matter not covered by this

15 Resolution or the Development Agreement The Volusia County Zoning Enforcement

16 Official will ensure compliance with this Resolution and the Development Agreement.

17 E. Unless otherwise provided in paragraph D, nothing in this Resolution or the

18 Development Agreement shall abridge the requirements of the Code of Ordinances, County

19 of Volusia. Timing and review procedures contained in this Resolution and the

20 Development Agreement may be modified to comply with the Land Development Code of

21 Volusia County, Florida, as codified in article III of Chapter 72, Code of Ordinances, County

22 of Volusia ("land development code").

23 EFFECTIVE DATE. This resolution diall take effect immediately upon adoption

Page 3 of 18
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1 by the council.

2
3 „ „DONE AND ORDERED IN OPEN MEETING.
4, ,

COUNTY C• NCIL
COUN VOLUSIA, FLORIDA

or

•4O-.
/4r

' t. ; .= fseen.' "...'
-14 a 0Iei47 ...r .. 1a ag . ,,..... -
12,, GA . * . • c. C•'. . •

1 /4* *. • • • • . 'i\' ° .
t . e3U4110 ' '•

''' ''
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Please return recorded document to:

Volusia County
Growth and Resource Management
123 W. Indiana Ave., Room 202
Deland, FL 32720

EXHIBIT "1"

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
PUD-14-037 

A. Development Concept The property shall be developed as a BPUD

substantially in accordance with the Master Development Plan. The Master Development

Plan shall govern the development of the property as a BPUD and shall regulate the future

use of this parcel.

1. Master Development Plan. The Master Development Plan (MDP) shall

consist of the Preliminary Plan prepared by Dewberry I Bowyer Singleton, dated March

2014 and this Development Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement"). The Preliminary Plan is

hereby approved and incorporated in this Agreement by reference as Exhibit "B." The

Master Development Plan shall be filed and retained for public inspection in the Growth

and Resource Management Department and shall constitute a supplement to the Official

Zoning Map of Volusia County.

2. Amendments. All amendments of the Master Development Plan,

other than those deemed by the Zoning Enforcement Official's reasonable opinion to be

minor amendments, in accordance with section 72-289 of the zoning code, shall require the

review and recommendation of the Planning and Land Development Regulation

Commission and action by the Volusia County Council in the same manner as a rezoning

of the parcel.

3. Final Site Plan Approval. After the Preliminary Plan is recorded, and

Page 5 of 18
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prior to issuance of any permits for construction, including clearing and landfill, a Final Site

Plan shall be prepared and submitted for review and approval in the manner required by

the land development code, as amended. The preliminary plan, attached as Exhibit B,

meets the minimum submittal requirements of a Conceptual Site Plan application in

accordance with the land development code. Therefore, the MDP shall be in-lieu of a

Conceptual Site Plan application, and the owner/developer is authorized to proceed with

submittal of a Final Site Plan application once this Order and Resolution has been

recorded.

B. Unified Ownership. The Applicant or his successors has and shall maintain

unified ownership of the subject parcel until after the issuance date of Final Site Plan

Development Order.

C. Phases of Development. The development of the BPUD, as shown on the

Preliminary Plan, shall occur in 1 phase.

D. Land Uses within the PUD. The development of the parcel shall be

consistent with the uses prescribed for each area within the proposed BPUD. The locations

and sizes of said land use areas are shown on the Preliminary Plan, Exhibit B, consistent

with the Master Development Plan.

The subject parcel shall be used only for the following uses and their customary

accessory uses or structures:

I. Permitted Uses: Aquatic Education and Recreation: The purpose and

intent of the Aquatic Education and Recreation land use is for land owned by an institution

Page 6 of 18
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of higher learning, located on and with access to a lake, river, or navigable waterway, for

the following specific uses:

A. Education: Use for indoor and outdoor student classrooms,

scientific research, marine oriented research facility,

community education, leadership training, nature study,

photography.

B. Recreation: primary and secondary recreational facilities

including boat house, docks, boat launching facilities, boat

storage, mooring, for student training, ropes course, sporting

events, and regattas.

Civic Use: Buildings, pavilions, boardwalks, park open space,

and interpretive sites, overlooks, for use of civic events, indoor

and outdoor entertainment (refer to Section 10-31, article II

Code of Ordinance), community events, private receptions,

concessions, and education.

D. Marina: primarily for human powered vessels such as rowing,

kayaking, canoeing, stand up paddling, small boat sailing, and

other recreational watercraft that may fit the same category for

team or group activity, human powered boat rental to students

staff, and faculty, and motorized vessels used for supervising

training, managing regattas, and scientific research.

2. Prohibited Uses: All uses not specifically permitted are prohibited, including but

not limited to fuel dispensers, college dormitory(ies), and

Page 7 of 18
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overnight camping

E. Development Standards.

1. Project Size: 9.91 acres

2. Maximum lot coverage: 35% (principal and accessory

building coverage)

3. Maximum building height: 35 feet

4. Landscape Buffer requirements: Required landscaping shall comply

with the minimum requirements of Section 72-284 of the zoning code as amended, except

as otherwise stated in this document. At least 75% of required landscaping shall be native

species that is drought tolerant. A vegetative buffer of 30 feet shall be installed, or the

existing vegetation maintained, as appropriate, along the southern and western property

lines between the site and existing homes and 15 feet along all road right-of-way as shown

on the MDP.

5. Property perimeter building setbacks: 50 feet (applicable to all

yards as defined by the zoning code). A 50-foot waterfront setback

shall be provided in accordance section 72-294 of the zoning code or

from the upland boundary of the Wekiva River Aquatic Preserve,

whichever is greater.

6. Minimum building separation distance 25 feet

7. Off-street parking and loading requirements: Off-street parking and

loading requirements shall be in accordance with Section 72-286 of the zoning code as

amended, with the exception that Section 72-286(6), Maximum off-street parking, shall not

Page 8 of 18
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apply.

The applicant shall develop a parking plan subject to approval by county staff

as part of the Final Site Plan which may include temporary no parking signs in the vicinity.

The applicant estimates the site can accommodate 250 vehicles. No parking shall be

allowed on county right-of-way. The applicant will provide transportation to the site from

off-site parking areas during regattas with attendances in excess of the parking capacity.

Buses shall be required to stop their engines while parked on the site.

8. Signage requirements: Signs shall comply with applicable

requirements of the zoning code as amended, including Section 72-303(j) Nonresidential

development design standards unless otherwise stated by this document.

The site shall be allowed up to two (2) ground monument signs of up to eight

(8) feet tall and 32 square feet in area per sign. Temporary signs shall be allowed for

regattas and other events. There shall be no more than 10 temporary signs of up to six (6)

square feet in area per sign.

9. Nonresidential Development Design Standards:  The requirements of

Section 72-303 Nonresidential Development Design Standards of the zoning code as

amended apply as stated by said Section 72-303, unless otherwise stated by this

document.

10. Illumination: To minimize obtrusive aspects of excessive and/or

nuisance outdoor light usage, while preserving safety, security and the nighttime use and

enjoyment of the property, the following apply:

a. A signed and sealed illumination plan and details shall be submitted

with the Final Site Plan application.

Page 9 of 18
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b. In no case shall illumination from the property increase the level of

illumination at the property lines by more than half (0.5) foot candle (fc).

c. All light fixtures including wall and surface mounted luminaries shall

be installed and maintained in such a manner that is fully-shielded

down.

d. Light Trespass: all external lighting shall be reduced by 50% after

11 p.m. until sunrise.

e. Illumination plan shall not exceed 40,000 lumens per acre.

f. Light fixtures shall be decorative in appearance and compliment the

architectural style of the building. Light poles shall not exceed twenty

(20) feet in height.

F. Environmental Considerations. The minimum environmental requirements of

Chapter 72 of the Code of Ordinances, County of Volusia, as amended, shall be met.

G. Sewaqe Disposal and Potable Water Facilities. Provisions for sewage

disposal and potable water needs of the BPUD will be provided in accordance with the

comprehensive plan, the land development code and Fla. Admin. Code Ann. R. 64E-6.

Potable water shall be provided by the Lake Beresford Water Association. Sanitary sewer

treatment /waste disposal shall be provided by the City of DeLand.

H. Stormwater Drainage. Provision for stormwater retention shall be in

accordance with the land development code.

Page 10 of 18
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I. Access and Transportation System Improvements. All access and

transportation system improvements shall be provided in accordance with the land

development code. The site shall be developed and used in such a manner as to maintain

a Level of Service "C" for all affected roadways per the Hontoon Local Plan. The parcel

shall be developed in substantial accordance with the following access and transportation

system improvements:

1. Access. Access locations to the project site shall be consistent with

those in the MDP. Site access, pedestrian, bicycle and traffic circulation

improvements and access points shall be determined during final site plan

review, in accordance with the requirements of the land development code

as may be modified by the Development Review Committee and/or Volusia

County Traffic Engineer as may be necessary to provide required pedestrian,

bicycle, and traffic safety improvements on and adjacent to the site.

2. Transportation System Improvements. Transportation system

improvements shall be provided as required by the land development code,

as determined during final site plan review, as may be modified by the

Development Review Committee and/or Volusia County Traffic Engineer.

J. Fire Protection. The applicant is responsible for providing adequate on site

water supply and other fire protection improvements to serve the BPUD project. The

design, capacity, and location of the required water supply and other fire protection

improvements shall be as required by the Volusia County Fire Marshall's office.

Page 11 of 18
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K. Hours of Operation. The facility shall only be open from one hour before

sunrise to 11 p.m. except astronomy classes may be conducted after 11 p.m. to view

extraordinary astronomical events and the applicant shall make every effort to minimize

noise and light during such classes. Outdoor amplified sound shall be prohibited from

sunset to 9 a.m. Regattas may have appropriate amplified sound during daylight hours.

L. Other Requirements. The applicant is entitled to hold regattas at the site

consistent with the following criteria:

1.) A regatta shall be defined as an on-water race event that exceeds 500

attendees.

2.) Regattas shall only be permitted between September through April and

shall not exceed two days in length.

3.) The applicant shall be limited to two (2) regattas between the months of

September through December and two (2) between the months of January

through April.

4.) The regatta permitted use shall be valid for a period of two (2) years from

the effective date of this order and resolution. Renewal of this use shall

require county council approval of a major amendment to allow the regattas

as a permanent permitted use. At that time, the applicant shall submit, as

part of the application for a major amendment, a traffic and safety review of

the regatta events.

5.) Sixty (60) days prior to each regatta, the applicant shall provide the

county a plan which shall include estimated number of attendees, and plans
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for parking, transporting participants to the site, port-o-lets, garbage, security,

and for vendors and concessions.

All uses of the property, regattas or other uses, shall comply with Volusia County

noise ordinances. The provisions of Chapter 10, Article II, Outdoor Entertainment Events

shall not apply for regattas as set forth in this section for the two year period set forth in this

paragraph or as allowed by major amendment as set forth in paragraph L.4.

M. Alcoholic Beverages. The facility shall enforce NCAA Regulations regarding

the sale of alcoholic beverages at athletic events. Otherwise, the Stetson Alcohol Policy

currently in effect on campus shall be enforced for student events on the Property.

N. Expiration of Development Agreement. The Applicant shall file a final site

plan within twelve (12) months from the effective date of this Order and Resolution. Failure

to timely file said final site plan or overall development plan shall immediately render the

development agreement null and void, unless the zoning enforcement official, for good

cause shown, approves a minor amendment to extend the time period indicated in this

paragraph.

0. Binding Effect of Plans. Recording, and Effective Date. The Master

Development Plan, including any and all supplementary orders and resolutions, and the

Preliminary Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Applicant and his successor in

title or interest. The BPUD zoning, Order and Resolution and all approved plans shall run

with the land.
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This Order and Resolution and all subsequent Orders and Resolutions shall be filed

with the Clerk of the Court and recorded within forty-five (45) days following execution of

the document by the Volusia County Council, in the Official Records of Volusia County,

Florida. One copy of the document, bearing the book and page number of the Official

Record in which the document was recorded, shall be submitted to the Growth and

Resource Management Department. The date of receipt of this document by the Growth

and Resource Management Department shall constitute the effective date of this Order

and Resolution and its subsequent amendments. The applicant shall pay all filing costs for

recording documents.

P. Conceptual Approval: The parties hereto acknowledge that reductions in

density and/or intensity may and do occur; and that minor changes to roadway design,

location and size of structures, actual location of parking spaces, specific locations for land

uses, and locations and design of stormwater storage, landscape buffers and upland

buffers may result to comply with the land development code. A request for such an

amendment shall be reviewed by the zoning enforcement official and may be processed as

a minor amendment in accordance with section 72-289 of the zoning code. The Applicant

agrees to revise and record the Revised Preliminary Plan which reflects any such changes

with the Clerk of the Court immediately following the expiration of the 30 day period for

appealing Development Review Committee (DRC) decisions to the County Council. A

copy of the Revised Preliminary Plan, bearing the book and page number of the Official

Record in which the document was recorded, shall be submitted to the Growth and

Resource Management Department.
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Instrument# 2014-098109 # 15
Book: 6995
Page: 3004

DONE and ORDERED by the County Council of Volusia County, Florida, this 1st

day of May, 2014.

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF VOLUSIA

VOLUSIA COUNTY COUNCIL

• • dr"A°51 "

4 a on P. Davis
County Chair

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  2nd  day of

June , 2014, by James T. Dinneen and Jason P. Davis, as

County Manager and County Chair, Volusia County Council, respectively, on

behalf of the County of Volusia, and who are personally known to me.

NO LIC, STA OF FLORIDA
Typ nt Name:

Commission No.: 

My Commission Expires: 
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Resolution 2014-60

Stetson University Crew BPUD

1.111"90 1"16.41RCY A. MERMAN

Its Notary Public - State 
ot Florida

1 My Comm. Expires 
Feb 9, all

- Commission # FF 062743
4 10 , Booted Through National Notary 

Assn.

• "war -.or 'WC 7- -MI 
"Mr— ■Irr-



WITNESSES: OWNER(S):

(2‘Le 7 

11.401legiu.  

State of Florida
County of Volusia

Instrument# 2014-0981091 16
Book: 6995
Page: 3005

Robert Huth, Vice Pr-si.ent of Finance
and Chief Finan I Officer

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  15  day of

 , 2014 by  'V "\\uaN.,, --s 
Robert Huth, VP of Finance and CFO

who is (are) ersonally kne n to me or who have produced

as o 
NOT RY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
Type or Print Name:

\

Commission No.:

My Commission Expires: 
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ANNETTE L. MILLER
NOTARY PUSUC
STATE OF FLORIDA
Cann* FF109183
Expires 4127/2018



Instrument# 2014-098109 it 17
Book: 6995
Page: 3006

EXHIBIT "A"

Legal Description

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT ORDER NO. 3951422)

LOTS 6 TO 19, INCLUSIVE; LOTS 83 THROUGH 101, INCLUSIVE, LOTS 120 THROUGH 128,

INCLUSIVE, AND THAT PART OF LOTS 102 AND 116 THROUGH 119, INCLUSIVE, LYING

EAST OF LINE 250 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF SECTION 24,

TOWNSHIP 17 SOUTH, RANGE 29 EAST, BUENA VISTA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT

THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 11, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF

VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA.

TOGETHER WITH THOSE PORTIONS OF LAKE SHORE DRIVE LYING BETWEEN LOTS 102 AND

119 THROUGH 121 AND PRADO STREET LYING ADJACENT TO LOTS 13 THROUGH 19 AND 83

THROUGH 90 AND HABANA STREET LYING ADJACENT TO LOTS 101 AND 128, AS SHOWN ON

THE PLAT OF BUENA VISTA, ACORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK

11, PAGE 11 AND AS VACATED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 669, PAGE 370 OF THE

PUBLIC RECORDS OF VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA.
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Best Available Image

EXHIBIT "B"

Preliminary Plan

Instrument# 2014-098109 It 18
Book: 6995
Page: 3007
Diane M. Matousek
Volusia Coley, Clerk of Court
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04/20/2015 02:22 PH
Instrument# 2015-069522 # 1
Book: 7106
Page: 4859

ACCESS EASEMENT

This Access Easement made this --- (D'AJ'clay of çcX, 2015, by STETSON
UNIVERSITY, INC., whose post office address is 421 N. Woodland Blvd., DeLand, FL,
32723, as Grantor, to the COUNTY OF VOLUSIA, a Political Subdivision of the State of
Florida, whose address is 123 W. Indiana Ave., DeLand, FL 32720, as Grantee.

WITNESSETH: That the Grantor for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and
other valuable considerations paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
hereby grants unto the Grantee, its successors and assigns, a perpetual and permanent access
easement on, over and through the following described land in Volusia County, Florida, viz:

SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED

The purpose of this access easement is to provide Grantee and the public with pedestrian
access and non-motorized vessel ingress and egress to Lake Beresford. This easement replaces
Alhambra Street, a 50 foot wide platted right of way in Buena Vista Sub., Plat Book 11, Page 11
that was vacated on May 1, 2014 in Resolution 2014-59 and recorded in Official Record Book
6989, Pages 1260 through 1264 of the Public Records of Volusia County, Florida.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto said Grantee, its successors and assigns
forever, and the Grantor will defend the title to said lands against all persons claiming by,
through or under said Grantor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantor has signed and sealed these presents the day
and year first above written.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED
IN THE PRESENCE OF: (Two witnesses
required by Florida Law)

/14-41-7/
Wils Signature

(3641 L 8e.4.5 

(Print or Type Name) s

Witness Signature

A la- EI s
(Print or Type Name)

Stetson University, Inc.

WOJC`A-dt ?D. 
(Print or Type Name)

ATTEST:
EVP fo Business and CF

I Act -71. #14/‘ /1-17-
(Print or Type Name)



Instrument# 2015-069522 # 2
Book: 7106
Page: 4860

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF VOLUSIA

Before me personally appeared kS)Q.04S.A \- ...,̀d)ci.1  and to \-Numi.cc, to me well
known and known to me to be the  v  President and  V t..1? coca.evi-espectively of Stetson 
University, Inc., the corporation named in the foregoing instrument, and known to me to be the
persons who as such officers of said corporation, executed the same; and then and there the said
 and the said ' -\1.0 -c„s- --)D.„—  did acknowledge before
me that said instrument is the free act and deed of said corporation by them respectively executed
as such officers for the purposes therein expressed; that the seal thereunto attached is the
corporate seal by them in like capacity affixed; all under authority in them duly vested by the
Board of Directors of said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and official seal this PC) day of  'C Lt  A.D.

ANNETTE L MILLER
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF FLORIDA
Commit FF109183
Expires 4/27/2018

This instrument prepared by:
Marcia Naber
Volu.sia County Public Works
123 W. Indiana Ave.
DeLand, FL 32720

PROWIMM3AND'auenaVistaStetsonUniviAcoessEasernentdoex

Notary Public Signature

r
(Print or Type Name)

My commission expires:



Instrumentit 2015-069522 II 3
Book: 7106
Page: 4861

EXHIBIT "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

A PORTION OF ALHAMBRA STREET, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF BUENA VISTA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 11, PAGE 11, AND VACATED PER OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 6989, PAGE 1260,
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, BOUNDED ON THE WEST LINE BY THE SOUTHERLY PROJECTION
OF THE EAST LINE OF KIRKLAND UNRECORDED SUBDIVISION #744 AS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 6720,
PAGES 4058-4059, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND BOUNDED ON THE EAST LINE BY THE
WATERS OF LAKE BERESFORD, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 95, OF AFORESAID PLAT OF BUENA VISTA; THENCE N4750.55"E,
ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1131 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHERLY
PROJECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID KIRKLAND UNRECORDED SUBDIVISION 1744 WITH SAID NORTHERLY LINE
OF LOT 95; THENCE NOT17'18*W, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION, A DISTANCE OF 22.20 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE CON77NUE ALONG SAID LINE N011718'W, A DISTANCE OF 26.45 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE
LYING 11.79 FEET NORTHERLY OF AND PERPENDICULAR TO THE CENTERLINE OF AFORESAID ALHAMBRA STREET; THENCE
N4750'557; PARALLEL TO SAID CENTERLINE, A DISTANCE OF 29151 FEET, MORE OR LESS TO THE WATERS EDGE OF
LAKE BERESFORD; THENCE ALONG SAID WA tEKS EDGE S3725TIrE, A DISTANCE OF 20.07 FEET, MORE OR LESS TO A
POINT ON A LINE LYING 8.21 FEET SOUTHERLY OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE AFORESAID CENTERLINE OF ALAHAMBRA
STREET; THENCE S4750.55"W, ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 313.15 FEET, MORE OR LESS TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

SAID LANDS CONTAINING 0.14 ACRES OR 6,107 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

SURVEY NOTES: 

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE RELATIVE TO AN ASSUMED BEARING OF N0117.18'W ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OFKIRKLAND UNRECORDED SUBDIVISION 1744, AS RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 6270, PAGES 4058-4059,OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA.

2. LANDS SHOWN HEREON WERE NOT ABSTRACTED FOR RIGHTS—OF—WAY, EASEMENTS, OWNERSHIP, ADJOINERS OROTHER INSTRUMENTS OF RECORD.

a THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY.

03/10/15

WILLIAM D. DONLEY A DATE
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPP
LICENSE NUMBER 5381
NOT VALID ;OHM THE SIGNAflJPI AND THE ORIGINAL RAISED SEAL OF A
FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER

SHEET 1 0F2 (SEE SHEET 2 FOR SKETCH OF DESCI?IPTION)

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION ONLY. THIS IS NOT A SURVEY.
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421 N. WOODLAND BLVD
DELAND, FLORIDA 32723

(386) 822-7015
STETSON.EDU

A q u a t i c  C e n t e r
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STETSON University     |     BEYOND Success – Significance

S T E T S O N  U N I V E R S I T Y :  
W E S T  V O L U S I A ’ S  E C O N O M I C  G R O W T H  E N G I N E
 
Since 2009, Stetson has charted significant economic growth in the following areas:
 
ENROLLMENT
•	 Increased applications 125% (+5,700)
•	 Increased campus visits 108% (+1,800)
	 •   Out-of-state up 114% (+600)
•	 Increased student enrollment 30% (+600)
•	 Increased net tuition 35% ($12 million)
•	 Invested $2 million in renovation costs after purchasing University Inn and Stetson Cove for student 

housing
•	 Generating 14,400 room nights at Clarion Inn (DeLand) for students starting Fall 2014
•	 Adding increased room nights for families and visitors
 
Employment 
Per W-2s
•	 Increased number of employees by 5% (+136)
•	 Increased overall net salaries and benefits to 16.5% (+$7.2 million) 
 
Community
•	 Generates an estimated regional economic impact of $250 million annually 
•	 Expanded Athletics to 18 NCAA Division I sports
	 •   Added football, filling 31,000 seats
	 	 •   Generated more than 1,000 room nights for players and fans	
	 	 •   Invested more than $10 million in Capital Expenditures 
	 	 	 •   University $7.2 million
	 	 	 •   City of DeLand and Volusia County $3.5 million
	 	 	 	 •   Includes $1.4 million ECHO Grant
•	 Generated increased local business activity (due to expansion in enrollment and athletics) 
•	 Developing the Aquatic Center on Lake Beresford
	 •   Purchased and improved at a cost in excess of $1 million
	 •   Expected (with a developed site) to increase room nights to 10,000 annually, 	  
	      with majority being out-of-state and international visitors 
	

sjohnsto
Typewritten Text



SIGNIFICANCE
BEYOND SUCCESS 

Having recently acquired a waterfront tract on Lake Beresford on the St. Johns River, Stetson University is 
developing an Aquatic Center that has far-reaching, positive benefits for the State of Florida in regard to 
tourism, education, water policy and economic development. 

The Center will support Stetson’s NCAA Division I rowing team as well as projects that establish Stetson’s 
developing niche in freshwater initiatives. It also will offer various opportunities for public access to Lake 
Beresford through planned academic, recreational and cultural activities. 

The $4 million project includes a $1 million investment by Stetson University, other contributions 
and grants, and an appropriations request to the State of Florida for the remaining amount for the 
development of the site to include construction of a boathouse supporting a range of activities at the 
Center, waterfront enhancement, and sanitary facilities infrastructure. 

UNIQUE LOCATION IN CENTRAL FLORIDA
The 10-acre tract has nearly 1,000 feet of waterfront on the western shore of Lake Beresford in West Volusia 
County and is uniquely suited both as a sport and recreation center for non-motorized craft and for the 
study of water issues due to its connection and proximity to the St. Johns River and several freshwater 
springs in central Florida.  

With its coveted flat water, safe access to 140 miles of rowable rivers and lakes allowing multiple programs 
to run simultaneously, and minimal powerboat traffic (due to a long no-wake zone for the protection 
of manatees), as well as freshwater, warm climate and undeveloped shoreline, Lake Beresford’s location 
is considered one of the best training grounds in the world for the sport of rowing and related human-
powered, non-polluting, low-noise water activity.

A CENTER FOR SPORT, LEADERSHIP AND EDUCATION

Stetson University Aquatic Center

1 2



Stetson University Aquatic Center

THE OPPORTUNITY
The Stetson University Aquatic Center site currently has a primitive marina with safe  
water access for human-powered craft, an activity field, self-contained parking areas  
and covered boat storage. Stetson recognizes the undeveloped potential of this  
uniquely situated property. 

This investment in the Center would allow for the creation of a multi-purpose boathouse  
that would serve as (1) an international training site for rowers and other athletes of all  
ages, (2) an activity center for corporate leadership development, recreation and outdoor- 
focused tourism through provision of non-motorized boating facilities target-marketed  
to out-of-state Fortune 500 leaders, and (3) classroom and meeting space for both the  
University and outside groups. 

The expectation would be to grow the facility with programming to yield 10,000 room  
nights — or $3 million — annually (Central Florida Sports Commission analysis). For an  
investment of $4 million, a three times ROI could be realized in less than five years.  
This does not include additional student enrollment at Stetson University nor results  
of corporate “C” level exposure.

Research conducted at the Center will help educate our workforce and communities  
about the positive impact we can have on aquatic ecosystems, contributing to the  
State of Florida’s goals to protect precious water resources. 

SIGNIFICANCE
BEYOND SUCCESS 
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Stetson University Aquatic Center

ECONOMIC IMPACT
In 2013, approximately 400 athletes and coaches used the site with an average per person stay of  
nine nights, yielding approximately 3,600 total room nights. When these visitors are not on the lake  
and connected waterways, they spend their time and money in restaurants, hotels and area businesses 
in nearby cities, away from Lake Beresford neighborhoods. Visitors and tourists arrive at their hotel 
rooms by bus, air, van and personal vehicles throughout the year and are generally bused to the Center. 
The new Sunrail station is approximately two miles from the Beresford site.

Stetson University will operate the facility, with programming to yield 10,000 room nights — or $3 
million — annually.

HIGH-INCOME TARGET DEMOGRAPHIC
Since 2002, Stetson has attracted rowing teams from three key segments of this high-income 
demographic: (1) international competitors and (2) U.S. high schools, prep schools and universities, 
especially in Northern and Mid-Atlantic states from January through March. A developed Lake Beresford 
site would also attract more (3) “eco-tourist” adult rowers who form a highly desirable segment.

Among families in this lucrative demographic, word-of-mouth publicity generated from a quality 
experience in central Florida can lead to repeat visits for sport or vacation and produce future  
investments in business development given their new-found familiarity with central Florida. 

Athletic program growth is a key component to Stetson’s goal of reaching an enrollment high  
of 3,000 undergraduates by Fall 2016; developing relationships with such high schools and prep  
schools is a continued priority that has far-reaching and mutually beneficial effects on the  
regional and state economy. 

Actual 2012-13     Actual 2013-14         Est. 2014-15             Est. 2015-16              Est. 2016-17
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Source: Central Florida Sports Commission Economic Analysis, February 2014

1,923

3,420

5,587

7,720

9,545

Total Room Nights Generated Annually

SIGNIFICANCE
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COMPLEMENT TO BENDERSON PARK IN SARASOTA
The Lake Beresford location is ideal for year-round use and is an in-demand training site where 
international rowing teams hold winter practices in Florida’s subtropical weather. Teams preparing for 
the 2017 World Rowing Championships and other major regattas at Benderson Park in Sarasota would 
have access to the site. 

Stetson’s plans for Lake Beresford as a regional economic driver have been endorsed by the Central 
Florida Sports Commission. 

Supporting a Lake Beresford destination will allow the State of Florida to capitalize on its investment 
in Sarasota and extend a bigger footprint in the rowing community – a high-income demographic. It 
raises the national and international profile of all involved and helps ensure future growth and long-term 
economic impact.

In terms of design, the Aquatic Center will draw inspiration from boathouse constructions  
across the country, including those pictured at right. 

MULTI-USE FACILITY
More than a training center, the Aquatic Center’s two-level boathouse will draw a multitude  
of audiences by creating versatile usage: 

•	 Open space for community meetings, receptions and other events 

•	 An activity center – featuring climbing walls, confidence courses and zip lines – designed for 
Professional Leadership, Teambuilding and Professional Development that serves Fortune 500 and 
other corporations* as well as for programs that build self-esteem and leadership potential in area 
youth 

•	 A site for community-based athletic and fitness programs and competitions for youth and adaptive 
sports that also draw participants from out of state. The facility will have universal design, making it 
accessible to all visitors.  

•	 A field station for Stetson’s environmental institute, to promote interdisciplinary learning and research, 
advance policy development at the forefront of research, develop leadership for solving challenging 
environmental issues, and demonstrate sustainability as a core Stetson University value**

*Stetson’s School of Business Administration is helping to develop business alliances; see teamconceptsinc.com for partnership and 
program examples. 

**Stetson’s research facilities for Aquatic Biology and Environmental Science would support the study of water quality; fish (including 
game fish), frogs and turtles; springs and lake management; and nutrient pollution. Studies could be done in cooperation with the 
Department of Environmental Protection or St. Johns River Water Management District. This knowledge also would be channeled for 
community outreach, as education of the public is a key component in protecting our water resources. 

Bolles School in Jacksonville, FL

Camden County Boathouse in New Jersey

Episcopal High School in Jacksonville, FL

Stetson University Aquatic Center

SIGNIFICANCE
BEYOND SUCCESS 
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Stetson University Aquatic Center

SUMMARY
The $4 million Stetson University Aquatic Center would generate an estimated  
$3 million annual economic impact, with a three times ROI that could be realized  
in less than five years. 

Building on a successful and growing NCAA Division I rowing team and a niche in freshwater  
initiatives, Stetson’s 10-acre waterfront tract on Lake Beresford is a highly desirable and unique  
location with undeveloped potential that allows the State to capitalize on its investment in  
Benderson Park to expand its footprint among a lucrative rowing demographic.

Thank you for your consideration. 

Lake Beresford Property Improvement Cost Schedules

Land Acquisition and Improvement to Date. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          $952,000

Boathouse/Event Center Development. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                           $2,400,000

Site Development. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                  $325,000

Waterfront Development. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           $230,000

Water and Sanitary System . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         $240,000

Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                           $4,147,000

Less Stetson’s Contribution. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      ($952,000)

Less Other Contributions & Grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                        

State Appropriation Request. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                     $3,195,000

SIGNIFICANCE
BEYOND SUCCESS 
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Bartram Gardens and Canoe Trail 

A condition of the Sandra Stetson donation for the ten acre Lake Beresford site and Aquatic 

Center is the establishment of a botanical garden. The donor has demonstrated a long term 

philanthropic interest in botanical gardens as evidenced by her support of the Naples Botanical 

Gardens. This provides a unique opportunity to establish the proposed Bartram Gardens on a site 

explored by the pioneer naturalist. 

John Bartram and his son William paddled up the St. Johns River through 

Lake Beresford in 1765-66 and William made a solo trip in 1774. John 

Bartram received a royal commission as the king’s botanist and is generally 

credited as the “father of American botany.” The botanical garden he 

established in Philadelphia was the first in the United States. But it was his 

son William Bartram whose writings captured the imagination of the world 

with his observations and descriptions of 

native flora and fauna, particularly from 

the Florida frontier.  His book, Travels 
through North & South Carolina, Georgia, 
East & West Florida, the Cherokee Country, the Extensive 
Territories of the Muscogulges, or Creek Confederacy, and the 
Country of the Chactaws, is considered the seminal work in 
natural history. Originally published in 1791, and shortened 

to Travels of William Bartram, it remains in print today with new scholarly editions. His 
writings influenced generations of biologists as well as inspired the work of William 
Wordsworth, Samuel Coleridge, and Ralph Waldo Emerson, and John James Audubon, who 
made his way up the St. Johns River in 1832 with Travels in hand. 

Across the Southeast, Bartram Trail markers denote places he visited and described. In Florida, 

the historical markers were placed by the Florida Federation of Garden Clubs. A marker is at the 

entrance to Hontoon Island State Park which notes his 

crossing of Lake Beresford.  

 

Establishing Bartram Gardens as part of the Stetson 

landscape has been an idea for many years. A landscape 

plan for the DeLand campus in 2011 describes a proposed 

garden “as a memorial to John Bartram and his son, 

William 18th century naturalists and botanists.”  

 

Locating Bartram Gardens at the Aquatic Center on Lake 

Beresford would be significant because it was a specific 

area he visited. Given his own description, the Stetson site 

could very well be the location where he took refuge from 

the storm before crossing what he called “long lake.” Functionally, Bartram Gardens would 

become a learning landscape welcoming the community into Stetson University in several ways. 

Of course the garden will be a welcome amenity to denizens of Deland and Volusia County in 

general, but is would also serve as an attractor to groups of plant enthusiasts, paddlers, and other 

nature enthusiasts.  

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCI7WvJK89McCFQFXPgodLREAOg&url=http://www.benfranklin300.org/bf300.htm&psig=AFQjCNEQO_OKryQLkuU3YkzBPxv3w9FTJg&ust=1442249465477436
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As the site of Stetson regattas, the Aquatic Center is going to be a showcase area for visitors to 

Volusia County from all over the country. While several regatta sites will contain boat houses 

and docks, very few could boast a botanical garden with significant historical context.  

Beyond this, a Bartram Garden at the Aquatic center will likely be an anchor point for an 

interstate network of multimodal nature trails. A system of paddle, biking and hiking trails is 
currently emerging along the St Johns River. Putnam County has already established an 
extensive trail network associated with Bartram’s Travels with an active eco-heritage 
tourism outreach program. 
http://bartram.putnam-fl.com/ 
It includes interpretive signs 

along the St. Johns River, and 

these markers are good examples 

of placing natural history, art, and 

exploration into the correct 

context of place. The River of 
Lakes Heritage Corridor 
committee of is currently 
working to do the same in 
Volusia County. Multiple 
walking and biking trails have 
already been identified that 
could fit into a Bartram system, 
and the Aquatic center would 
be a signature location for such 
a network. Eventually, this system could reach to Jacksonville, providing a unified eco-
heritage experience along and adjoining the river.  

There are many people throughout the Southeast, from Louisiana to North Carolina who 
are united by a cultural connection to William Bartram’s Travels. 
https://bartramtrailconference.wildapricot.org/. But with the exception of the historic trail 
markers, Bartram’s influence is scarcely documented in the actual landscapes where he 
explored. Gardens spaces and interpretive signage linking these places into a narrative are 
a natural way to link Bartram’s words with the places that inspired them. We are in a 
unique position to do this in a way that brings town and gown together with visitors from 
beyond the region. 

The Bartram Gardens should contain native Florida plants and ideally be accompanied by 

descriptions provided by Bartram. A garden space permits a living museum of the specimens 
in the context of the places he visited, alive with the variation brought by seasonal changes.  
Here are two examples of Bartram descriptions which could be used in the garden: 

Live Oak: “The trunk of the live oak is generally from 12 to 18 feet in girth, and rises 10-12 feet 

erect from the earth, some I have seen 18-20; then divides itself into three, four, or five great 

limbs which continue to grow in nearly a horizontal direction, each limb forming a gentle curve, 

or arch from its base to its extremity. I have stepped about 50 paces on a straight line from the 

trunk of one of these trees, to the extremity of the limbs.” 

 

http://bartram.putnam-fl.com/
https://bartramtrailconference.wildapricot.org/
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Magnolia: “but what appears very extraordinary…the glorious pyramidal magnolia grandiflora, 

showing large, beautiful and expansive white fragrant blossoms and great heavy cones on the 

slender procumbent branches, some even lying on the earth…” 

 

In addition, the gardens could contain interpretive signage showing his voyage up the St. Johns 

River and across Lake Beresford to the plantation that he visited and to Blue Spring that he later 

explored. There are no interpretive maps in public areas of Volusia County which show the 
route of the explorations of William Bartram.  

 
Dr. Tony Abbot of the Stetson’s 
Department of Environmental 
Science and Studies is currently 
working with students to 
identify locate the sites what 
Bartram described as part of the 
larger effort to establish the 
Bartram trail network n Volusia 
County.  He has been exploring 
these sites and has developed a 
preliminary map showing 
known locations of Bartram 
sites in West Volusia - shown at 
left here. He has been 
coordinating with the principal 
architects of the Bartram Trail 
in Putnam County to link with 
the efforts of Volusia County. 
The preliminary conversations 
regarding this collaboration are 
very promising.  
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The sites in Volusia County 
are associated with some of 
the more famous and exciting 
sites of the Bartram 
exploration. The night with 
the alligators spent on the 
shores of “Battle Lagoon” 
took place in our local waters. 
The photo at right is 
Bartram's drawing from that 
passage as shown in Putnam 
County's materials. 
 
On the following page is a 

composite map of the St. Johns 

River Expedition of John and 

William Bartram that would be 

used in the informational kiosk 
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The Stetson Aquatic Center will be the 

headquarters for the Institute for Water and 

Environmental Resilience. The Institute’s 

mission is to link the scholars and students at 

Stetson with the community at large along lines 

of shared interest in protecting the world we 

share. The Bartram Gardens will be an 

embodiment of that commitment as a space that 

all can share in the celebration of Americas First 

Native Born Naturalist.  
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tal policy expert Clay Henderson as the water institute’s first executive 
director. The Sandra Stetson Aquatic Center at Lake 

Beresford will be the institute’s living laboratory.
			   This is a story about the water institute and 

its broad mission. However, it’s also a story 
about how four people from different back-

grounds — a donor, a dean, a scientist and 
an environmentalist — came together to 
give the institute life.

WHAT THE INSTITUTE WILL DO
		  The institute, a first of its kind at 
Stetson, will focus on water and environ-
mental research in order to offer policy 

options to protect our water supply and our 
other natural resources here in Central 

Florida and beyond.
			  “The institute will help bring together 

faculty and student research in collaboration with 
community partners to look at big picture issues 

affecting our environment,” says Henderson, a 1977 Stetson 
graduate. “It will include all Stetson colleges and campuses and be 
truly interdisciplinary.”
	 Henderson understands the importance of the Institute for Water 
and Environmental Resilience. If it is to unravel this complex prob-
lem, he says, “The region needs a water institute to focus the research 
that will lead us to policy options.”
	 Specifically, the Institute for Water and Environmental Resilience 
will focus on student and faculty research, community engagement 
and experiential learning, along with strong public policy, community 
education and recreation components. It will also involve the commu-
nity in symposia and educational workshops. 

L
ooking out over the Atlantic Ocean from New 
Smyrna Beach, you can almost feel exotic 
Africa, the birthplace of hurricanes, just 
over the horizon. The sea’s vast scale 
dwarfs you. It’s like looking into 
the clear night sky filled with 
the bewildering Milky Way. 

	 One truth, however, is not bewildering. 
More than one kind of water connects Africa 
on one side and North America on the 
other. Dwindling freshwater resources also 
bind them together as it does many of the 
continents on this Earth. 
	 According to an article in The Nation titled 
“The Water Crisis Comes Home,” for exam-
ple, a U.N. report warns that by 2030 “demand 
for water will outstrip supply by 40 percent.” 
	 As the saying goes, however, all problems are 
local. Use Google Earth to zoom into North America 
and then drill down into green Florida. With its rainy sum-
mers and land dotted with rivers, lakes and springs, it’s hard to 
imagine the state facing a water problem like the rest of the continent.
	 But it does. 
	 The Floridan Aquifer, which blooms beneath Stetson’s I-4 corridor 
campuses, anchors this reflection on water. Tremendous population 
growth threatens the aquifer. The delicate groundwater also faces a 
saltwater backwash.  
	 Responsible for much of Florida’s fresh water, the aquifer bends 
until it almost breaks to serve our area. In the future, it may not be 
able to. 
	 Stetson recently created the Institute for Water and Environmental 
Resilience to study the issue. The university hired noted environmen-
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Fish Gotta Swim

A donor, a dean, a scientist and an environmentalist breathe life 
into Stetson’s new Institute for Water and Environmental Resilience.

And we need fresh water to live
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	 Where did Henderson get his passion to 
preserve the environment? It happened after 
law school when he returned home to New 
Smyrna Beach. He saw how quickly overdevel-
opment had transformed his home and 
Central Florida. He wanted to do something. 
	 “Some outstanding environmental leaders, 
such as Reid Hughes, Doris Leeper and 
Walter Boardman, took me under their 
wings,” Henderson remembers. “We focused 
on strategies to save our special areas in 
Volusia County.”
	 The result was protection of more than 
300,000 acres of conservation lands that 
preserve beaches, estuaries, rivers, lakes and 
springs. “Now these areas can become living 
laboratories for restoring habitat and protect-
ing watersheds,” Henderson explains. 
	 For the past 15 years, he has been senior 
counsel at the national law firm of Holland 
& Knight, focusing on environmental and 
water law. Before that, he served as president 
of the Florida Audubon Society, one of the 
nation’s oldest conservation organizations. 
He has also worked for The Nature Conserv-
ancy and The Trust for Public Land.
	 Henderson’s Stetson roots are deep. 
	 He remembers his father, Odis Henderson 
’52, as someone who was a part of the “great-
est generation” who fought in World War II 
and attended college on the GI Bill. 
	 After his father died, Henderson’s grand-
mother showed him a box of what she called 
“saved keepsakes.” In it was an essay his father 
had written for his English composition class 
titled “Why I Came to Stetson.”
	 “I came to Stetson to get the best educa-
tion possible so that I could return to the 
place of my kin and improve the lives of those 
who live there,” his father wrote.
	 Henderson carried that essay with him as a 
Stetson freshman and under his robes on 
graduation day. He read it as part of his 
student commencement address. 
	 “We have the capability to focus a tremen-
dous amount of brainpower to enrich the 
lives of those around us,” he says now, “and 
restore the environment that we share with all 
other living things.”

THE SANDRA STETSON 
AQUATIC CENTER
	 A key part of the water institute will be the 
new Sandra Stetson Aquatic Center at Lake 
Beresford. Sandra Stetson’s $6 million 
Aquatic Center gift will build a water research 
facility and provide a home for the universi-
ty’s crew teams. (See article on Page 6.)
	 There are deep roots here too. Sandra, a 

great-granddaughter of Stetson University’s 
namesake, John B. Stetson, has long sup-
ported garden, wetland and environmental 
efforts. The new Sandra Stetson Aquatic 
Center further fulfills that passion.   
	 Additionally, some in her family have 
rowed crew, so she has a real connection to 
the sport of sculling. As Stetson University 
President Wendy B. Libby, Ph.D., points out: 
“Her gift allows us to put recreation and 
research together under one roof.”
	 Libby says the gift to create the Aquatic 
Center also “strengthens our connection with 
the family that assured our continuation in 
the late 1800s.” After all, it was John B. 
Stetson who contributed his financial support 
to the institution after founder Henry A. 
DeLand suffered economic setbacks during a 
severe freeze in his orange groves. (See article 
on Page 40.)
	 “The Aquatic Center is going to make a 
major difference in what we do,” declares 
Karen Ryan, Ph.D., dean of the College of 
Arts and Sciences. Ryan notes that the new 
Aquatic Center is more than a place for 
science. She envisions a facility where Stetson 
students can take advantage of the center’s 
recreational opportunities, including canoe-
ing and kayaking.  
	 Another component, according to Ryan, is 
a community outreach and education func-
tion. “The center will host workshops and 
seminars where noted environmental and 
policy speakers will give us their viewpoints,” 
she says. “And this new facility will help us 
marry science with policy creation. Our 
students need to be grounded in both.” 
	 In addition, the new Sandra Stetson 
Aquatic Center at Lake Beresford will serve as 
the water institute’s research arm. Particularly, 
public policy and environmental science 
students will take advantage of on-campus 
labs and classes while pursuing field study at 
the Aquatic Center.
	 “The Aquatic Center will fundamentally 
change the Stetson student experience with 
opportunities to get outside and on the 
water,” Henderson says.
	
A WORLDWIDE PROBLEM 
	 The water crisis, The Nation article warns, 
is now at the country’s front doorstep. “The 
price of water in 30 major U.S. cities is rising 
faster than most other household staples — 
40 percent since 2010, with no end in sight,” 
according to Circle of Blue, a water-focused 
group of leading journalists and scientists. 
The Nation article’s author, Maude Barlow, 
writes that water cutoffs are growing across 

the country. So, Florida’s not alone. It’s part 
of a worldwide problem. 
	 Can it be solved?
	 “Florida’s water problem exists because 
there are too many people consuming too 
much water,” asserts Wendy Anderson, 
Ph.D., professor and chair of Environmental 
Science and Studies at Stetson. “Salt water 
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surface when we did our visioning led by 
Dean Ryan for the Environmental Science 
and Studies Department,” Henderson recalls.
	 “We developed the idea for an institute, 
first of all, for all faculty and student 
research,” says Ryan. “It is meant to be a hub 
for water and environmental research, intern-
ships, community engagement and education 
and for experiential learning. It is not an 
academic unit, although it certainly has an 
educational mission. 
	 “Faculty and students will look at these 
water problems in an interdisciplinary way, 
because we are not going to solve them just 
on the science side or just on the policy side,” 
she explains. “Those things have to work 
together.”
	 Ryan admits that she’s picked up just 
enough environmental science at Stetson to 
be dangerous. “Remember, you’re talking to a 
Russian literature specialist,” she jokes.
	 She grew up in rural upstate New York and 
learned to love the environment in her 
bucolic hometown of Poolville, a hamlet of 
about 125 people. Water became an early part 
of her environmental experience. “I was free 
to run around the hills and swim the lakes.” 
	 Ryan remembers visiting her grandparents 
in their winter Florida home in New Smyrna 
Beach near the Stetson campus. 
	 “I absolutely fell in love with it,” she 
recalls. “I had never really been to the ocean. 
I had never been on a beach like that. 
	 “It was a transformative experience.”
	
	 Together, the underwriters and dreamers 
for the new institute — Sandra Stetson, Karen 
Ryan, Wendy Anderson and Clay Henderson 
— helped create Stetson’s new water institute 
and research center. With that type of team-
work, who knows the magic that can come 
from it?

Bill Noblitt is editor of stetson magazine.

	 Although many environmental studies 
professors and other faculty are affiliated with 
the institute, Stetson hired Anderson specifi-
cally to lead the charge to bring the university-
wide, interdisciplinary institute to fruition. 
	 “Wendy Anderson co-chaired with me the 
search committee for an institute executive 
director and was also instrumental in develop-
ing the proposal for it,” says Ryan.
	 Anderson will chair the Faculty Steering 
Committee for the water institute, working 
closely with Henderson to define research 
and outreach priorities.
	 Anderson first got involved with this kind 
of research as a graduate student when she 
studied plant uptake of nitrogen in upland 
forests in Tennessee.
	 But one day she found herself studying 
plants in a land habitat that is surrounded by 
and impacted by a marine environment. It 
was her Vanderbilt professor who pulled her 
in that direction by requesting her help in 
unraveling an important question about 
marine nutrients in Baja California, Mexico.
	 “It’s all about the connections between the 
two ecosystems — ocean and land,” she says 
now. From the hills of Tennessee, she found 
herself the only plant biologist among a group 
of animal ecologists in Baja. “It was so much 
fun to explore the detailed chemistry and 
physiology of plants in this environment,” she 
recalls. Anderson has continued to follow this 
line of questioning throughout her career. 
	 Today, although trained as a plant biolo-
gist, her research has evolved to focus on 
questions about the movement of nutrients 
and organisms from land to water and from 
water to land. She works on small islands in 
the Gulf of California and the San Juan 
Islands of Washington state, where marine-
derived nutrients impact soil chemistry and 
the physiology and diversity of plants and 
animals. 
	 “To put it simply,” she says, “it’s about how 
the digested fish in the form of seabird guano 
fertilizes the plants.”  
	 She now plans to explore similar questions 
along the St. Johns River system, the Indian 
River Lagoon and coastal dune systems.

A BREAKTHROUGH IDEA
	 Although the water institute touches all 
Stetson campuses and their faculty and 
students, the “breakthrough” idea for its 
creation began in the College of Arts and 
Sciences.
	 Henderson remembers a Stetson water 
institute being “kicked around” more than 
20 years ago. “The idea came back to the 

‘Saltwater intrusion into 
the Floridan Aquifer is 
irreversible, so every drop 
of fresh water that is 
pumped out of the 
aquifer only draws 
more salt water into it.’

intrusion into the Floridan Aquifer is irrevers-
ible, so every drop of fresh water that is 
pumped out of the aquifer only draws more 
salt water into it.
	 “Florida’s only hope is to figure out how to 
capture and store more fresh water above 
ground — something that is quite hard to do 
with its sandy surface,” she adds.
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